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?s9,

Septernber 22,2005

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of Solana Beach:

It is with great pleasure that we present to you the City of Solana Beach (City) Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

This year's report was prepared by the Finance Department in conformity with Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and has been audited in accordance with Generally

Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) by a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants. The

report consists of management representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently,

responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the

presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and

belief, the enclosed information is accurate in all material respects ancl is reported in a manner

designed to present l'airly the financial position of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable

an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes the financial activity for all funds of the

City. The City provides a wide range of services including planning, building, public works,

engineering, maintenance of streets, parks and public facilities, community services and

recreation, fire and marine safety, sanitation, and general administrative activities. Contracted

services include law enlorcement and animal control with the County of San Diego.

Internal Controls

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and rnaintaini¡g an intemal control

structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or

misuse, and to ensllre that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial staternents in confort¡ity with Generally Acceptecl Accounti¡g Principles. The internal

control strttcture is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these



objectivcs are met, 'l'lre concept ofreasonable assuLance recognizes that (l) the costs ofa conttol

should not exceecl tlie benehts likely to bc derived; and (2) the valualiou of'costs and benefits

requiles estimates and judgrnents by manageureut.

As a recipient of, State, County, and Federal financial resources, the City also is responsible for'

ensuring that an adequale inter-nal control structule is in place to cnsure con-tpliance with

applicable laws and regulations lelated to those programs. The intemal control structule is

subject to periodic evaluation by tlre managetnent ofthe City.

Annual Audit

Conlad and Associates, LLP, who were appointed by the City Council, have audited the City's

financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to ptovide rcasouable assurance that

1he financial statoments of the City for the hscal year encl June 30, 2005, are l'ree of matelial

misstatement. As part of tlie City's annual audit, reviews are made to determine the adequacy of

the intelnal control structure, as well as to deternine that the City has complied witli applicable

laws and regulalions. The results of the City's annual audit for the fiscal year euded June 30,

2005, providcd no instances of material weaknesses in the intelnal col11rol structure and no

violations of applicable laws ¿nd regulations. The independent auditor coucluded there was a

basis for rendering an unqualilìed opinion and the City's financial statemenls are fairly presented

in confomrity with Generally Accepted Accor,urting Principles. 'l'he indepcndent auditor's repot't

is presenled as the lì'st comporlenl of the financial section ol this report. Iu addition, the City

qualified to have a single audit of fcderal awards. A copy of the single audit n-ray be obtained by

contacting the City Finauce DepaÍlrent at 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, CA 92075.

Managements Discussion and Analysis (MDA)

This lettel of transmittal is designed to collìplement the MDA anti shoultl be t'eacl in conjunction

with it. The MDA provides "financial highlights" and inte4rrets the financial repolts by

analyzing lrencls and by explaining ohanges, lluctuations ald variances iu tl.re íÌnancial clata. lt.t

addition, the MDA is intended to disclose any known significarrt events or decisions tliat aflect

the fìnancial conclition of the City. The City's MDA can be lound inrr.nediately folìowing the

lcpoll of tlrc inJcpcntlcrrt rurlilors.



Governme nt Frofile

Tlte City of Solana Beach was ilcorporated July 1, 1986 ur.rder tbe general laws of the State of

Califolnia and is bome to a populalion of 13,400 per the State of Califomia DepaÍrnent of Finance.

Included wiúrin the City's financial stateÌnents is the finarrcial information of the Solana Beach

Public Facilities Corporation. The City is considered to be the pdmary goverunent and the Public

Facilities Cotporation is a componerrt unit. Additionally, since the govening boards of the City and

the componenl unit are the satne, the financial statements of the City ald the component unit are

blended.

Tlre Solana Beach Public Facilities Corporation was incorporated on July 25, 7990, ald is a

nonprofit public benefit corporation duly organized and existing under the Nonprofit Public Benefit

Cotporation Law for the putpose of benefiting the City by providirig financing for the planning,

development, acquisition, construction, improvernent, extension, repair, renovation of public

buildings, works, projects, facilities, fuinishings and equipment for use by the City.

The City of Solala Beach, an affluent coastal conlnunity, encompasses approxirnately 3.4 square

miles and is located tweúy-one rniles noÉh of the City of San Diego. It is bordered to the NoÍh,

South, and East by the cities of Encinitas, Del Mar, and San Diego respectively, aud the Pacific

Ocean to the West.

The City is a general law cily that operates urder the Council-Manager form of govemmetit. The

City Council is comprised of five membels elected at large for staggered four-year terms of office.

The Mayor and Deputy Mayor are selected by the Council from among its members to serve one-

year terms. The Council acts as the legislative and policy-rnaking body ofthe City, enacting all laws

and directing such actions as required to provide for the general welfare ofthe comrnunity.

The City Manager, appointed by the Council, serves as the Chief Executive Officer and is

responsible to the Council for the proper administration of all City affairs and the implementation

of all policies established by Council. The City Attomey is the only other posilion appointed by the

Council. All other deparhlent heads and employees are appointed by the City Manager.



Conr¡issions and Committees play an irnporlant role in the governmental structure of Solana

Beach. They provide many oppoÍunities for citizens to paflicipate in the affairs of the City.

Tliese Advisory Comrnissions and Committees assist ir.r the perfonr.rance of studies and the

issuance of recommelidations on various matters of concem to the Council.

Budgefary Process and Controls

The process of adopting a budget at the City of Solana Beach is generally a síx-month process

beginning in late December and ending in June when the City Council adopts the budget and

appropriates funds necessary fol the City to provide seruices to its residents.

The process is a1l-inclusive as depaúment directors work with the City Manager ald

representatives of the Finance Depafiment to discuss depafmental requesfs relative to the City's

available resources. The City's overall olrjectives and goals, along with the economic outlook,

selve as a platfonn for the proposed budget that is distributed to the City Council, and Budget

and Finance Committee for preliminary review and analysis in preparation of public workshops

and hearings. The public workshops and hearings are held to facilitate discussions of iterns

cortained within the proposed budget and allow the citizenry to participate in the budget process.

In addition to l¡temal Controls, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these

budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual

appropriated budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the General, Special Revenue,

Debt Servjce, and Capital Projects Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget.

The budget is ananged by fund, function and deparlment and presented to the Council by the

City Manager. The budget is then adopted amrually by the Council prior to the begiming of the

financial year and serves as the founclation for the City's financial plarming and control.

Department directols may make tl'ansfers of appropriations within their own departl-rents with

City Manager approval. The City budget ìs reviewed and has periodic adjustments at the middle

of the fiscal year and at the end of the hscal year. These adjustments are apploved by the City

Council.



The City also maintains an ellcumbrance accounting system as one teclrlique of accor.r.rplishing

budgetary control. The adopted budget fbr Fiscal Year 2004-05 was prepared in accordance witl.r

Generally Accepted Accounting Prinoiples.

As delnonstrated by the statements and schedules included ir the financial section of this reporl,

the City continues to nleet its responsibility for sound financial lnanagement.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Solana Beach is home to citizens who enjoy the srnall towrr atmospllere as well as a close proxi¡rity

to the City of San Diego. The local beaches ale a big atti'action to both residents a¡d non-residents.

The City is comprised mainly of siugle-family homes and condominiums with some retail, light

industrial, and seruice entities providing a tax base for the City.

As a subulban commuuity, Solana Beach's economic base is linked priniarily to the economy of the

greater San Diego region. In particular, the greater San Diego economic base sustai¡s the Cily's

residential and industrial facllities. The local economy is primarily based on small to medium sized

retail establishments and specialty stores selling general merchandise, fumiture, afl and c¡afts,

clothing, food, and gasoline. Such local economic genelators as the San Diego County Fairgrou¡ds

and vacation tourisrn support a significant porlion ofthe City's comnercial base.

The Callfornia econony stabilized durìng the fisca1 year despite the State's budgel urcertai¡ties,

which corfinue to undemrine tlie State econorry. For Fiscal Year' 2004-05, evidence fi-om the

legislative office suggested that California was in a period of very sluggish growth, which would

persist for several months. While the resideutial real estate ntarket remains strong, emplo¡,ment,

income and spending lemained soft, as were other areas of the econorny. Sola¡a Beach's

couservative fiscal policies will coutûrue to serve the cornnurity well during these tir¡es of
econor¡ic unceftainty.

General Fund propelty taxes have been, and are expected to continue to be, the highest reveirue

geïìeratol: for the City. Sales tax is the City's second largest revetlue source. During Fiscal Year

2004-05, actual dollars received in General Fund properly taxes increased from 2003-04 by

$106,030 or 30%, while sales tax decleased lry $29,679 or lyo and overall, the city's General

Fut]d irrcreased 1I .3"/o. Il is in¡roÉaut to note that the maj or grorvtb in tl.re General Fund revetìues



was due to the repaynent by lJre Stale of California for the Motor Vehicle in Ì-ieu fees. The

repa)m.ìent ol $226,Q24 helped to increase intergovenmeutal Revenues by $399,456, or 39Yo,

fi'om Fiscal Year 2003-04 to 2004-05. The strong housing market and stroug sales tax figures

demonstrate that the City ofSolana Beaoh continues to be a desirable place to live aud wolk.

For demograpl.ric statistics and properly value trends please see Tables 9 and 10 in the Statistical

Section of this report.

Major Projects and Financial Planning

Coastal Rail Trail Phase III -Construction

With Phases 1 and 2 of the Coastal Rail Trail completed, Phase 3 - Const¡uction began in mid-

April 2004 with a groundbreaking ceremony and the 2¡nì1e linear park was substantially

completed by the eld of the fiscal year. This park provides residents and visitors a recreational

pedestrian and bicycle pathway surourded in a beautifully native landscaped backdrop from the

nor1lrern to the southem city limits.

Fletcher Cove Restrooms

A construction contract was awarded in the frrst few monlhs of the fiscal year to build this

project. The project has been completed. The new restroom replaced the forty-year-old existing

structure and is the fìrst n.raj or constructior.r ploj ect of the overall þ-letcher Cove Master Plan.

Furdilg for this proj ect was solely from the City's CIP fuud.

I-SiLomas Santa Fe Interchauge

The Interchange project contir.rued this year with mole prelimiuary engineering and design. The l-

5/Lomas Sar.rta Fe Interchange will provide for the construction of r.rorthbouud and southbound

loop ramps aÌ1d Ihe realigllnent ofthe norlhbound off ranp. The project will enhance traffic flow

at one of the most congesled areas of the City.

Rosa & Cliff Street Bicycle/Pedestrian Bridges

The City embal'ked on a world-class project to provide vital pedesûian and bicycle links over the

lailroad tracks between Cedros Avenue and Highway 101. The bridges will also link with the



Coastal Rail Trail along Highway 101. The bridges will span approximately 125 and 180 feet in

length. 'Ihe Rosa Street Bridge has treen l¡uilt and is open for sewice.

The majority of future scheduled projects are infrastructure related. Funds have been allocated

for irnproving the City's stolm drain system to comply with State mandated requirenrents,

irnproving the sauitation pump stations and transmission lines, and improvemerfs to public

facilities. Future capital needs of the City are approximately $20.5 million over a frve-year

period. Most of the funding for these projects is fiorn extemal funding sources and grants.

Cash Managernent Policies and Practices

Cash resources of the individual funds are combined to for.tr a pool of cash and investnents.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in the Local Agency Investrnent Fund,

consistent with the City's Investment Policy.

Tlre City's hrvestment Policy is designed to naximize the productive use of assets eutrusted to its

care and to ûlvest and tlanage those funds wisely and prudently. Critena for selecting

investments and the order of priority are: (1) safety (2) liquidity ard (3) yeld. The basic premise

underlying the city's I¡vestment Policy is to ersure that money is safe, always available, and

eaming the highest and best retums. Accordingly, deposils wele either insured by the Federal

Depository Iasurance Corporation or collateralized.

Tlre average leld on funds invested was 2.108% as compared to 1.60/o the previous year.

Invesltnent ilcome includes appreciatiorVdepreciation in the fair value of investrnents. The total

irrvestnrent income fol all funds for the year was S48i,982.

Risk Management

'Ihe City of Solana Beach is a menber of the San Diego Pooled Insulance Program Authority

(SANDPIPA), a consortium of twelve govemrnental entities in San Diego County who have joi¡ed

together to achleve savings or.r insurance premiums through volurne purchasing and risk

management consulting. Each rnember pays for its proportionate share of its individually contracted

insurance coverage and consultiug services. Insurance activities ale frnanced by chalges to r¡embeL

cities and no long-tetrn debt has l¡een incuned.



At June 30, 2005, the City is self-insured fol each loss up to $100,000. Losses between $100,000

and $2,000,000 are self-funded through lhe SANDPIPA pool with excess layers between

$2,000,000 and $35,000,000 purchased tluough an insurance policy.

The City has created a risk management fund of which the goal is to mainlain a minimum fund

balance of $500,000 to adequately fund losses that are within the self-irsured reterrtion level of

$ 100,000. Tl-re balance in this fund at June 30, 2005 was $531 ,740.

Begimring October 1, 2003, the City put in place a program of self-insulance fol' worker's

compensation and employer's liability exposures insurance claims and canceled its coverage with

State Fund. Each claim./occuruence will have a self-insured retention of $125,000 with pooled

coverage Íiom $125,000 tlrougll $ 145 lrillion with the Califomia State of Association of Counties

(CSAC). Employee health benefits are provided by the City tluough pafiicipation in the Public

Employee's Retirement System Health Benefits Progam that is commonly refened to as PEMCHA.

All claims are investigated, valued, reser,,ed, defended and/or settled in accol'dance with

generally accepted insurance industry practices. There are no known existing claims that would

exceed the City's applicable coverages.

Pensio¡r and other post employment benefits.

The City contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an agent

multiple-errployer public ernployee defined benefit pension pian. The City participates in tluee

separate plar.rs lor its Miscellaneous, File, and Marine Safety employees. Each year an independent

actuary engaged by the pension plan calculates the amount of the amual contribution that the City

lnust make to the pension plan to ensul'e that the plan will be able to fully meet its obligations to retired

employees on a timely basis. As a lratter of policy, the City fully funds each year's arnual

contributior.r. Tl.re latest valuation r-eporls received from the PERS actuary reflects that the

Miscellaneous plan is under funded by 13.9%; tlie Fire pla:r is under fuirded by 15.8'r/o; and the Marine

plarr is under funded by 13.8o/o.



'lhe City also plovides post-retilernent healtli benefits f'or certai¡ retirees. As of the eud of the

cutrent fiscal yea:'tìiere were foufleen retiled employees receiving this benefit that ís hnanced on a

pay-as-you-go basis. GAAP cunently does not require govemments to repoft a liability i¡ the

financial statemeús jn comrectìor.r with an en-rployers' obligation to provide these benefits.

Additional inlormation on the City's pension analgements and post erxplo),lrient benefits can be

found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Govemment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded

a Cerlificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Solana Beach

for its Comprehensive Arurual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,2004. This was

tlie sixth consecutive year that the City has received this award. The CeÍificate of Achievement

is a prestigious national award recognizing confor-mance with the highest standards for

preparation of state and local govenment financial reporls.

In ot'der to be awarded a Certtftcate of Achievement, a govemment unit must publish an easily

readable and efficiently organ.ized Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporl, whose contents

confonl to program standards. Such Cotnprehensive An¡ual Financial Repoís must satisfy both

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and applicable legal requirements,

A Certificate of Achievernent is valid for a period of one year only. we believe our cun ent

repoft continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirernents, and we are

submirting it ro GFOA.

Sirlilarly, the Califomia Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) prese:rted the City of
Solana Beach with a celificate of Awald for outstanding Financial Reporting for its

Comprehensive Aurual Financial Repof for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. The Certificate

of Awal'd is a prestigious state recognition for conformance with certain high standards for

preparatiou of local govemment filiancial leporls. This was the eleven consecutive year that tlre

City received tlie award. The CSMFO Ceflificate of Award is also valid for a period of one year

only.



The preparation of the Comprehensive Alnual F'inancial Repor:t in accordance rvilh the GASB 34

frnancial leporting rnodel was rnade possible by the dedicated wolk of the Finance Department

staff. Each meml¡er of the staff, Malie Marron Berkuti, Debbie Joluson, and Sandi Lewis, has

oul sincere apprecialion for their contribulions made in the prepaation of this repoÉ. In

addition, we would like to recognize the elforts of our fon.ner Accountir-rg Manager,.Tohn Fusco,

for his assistance. We would also like to thank the Mayor and Council fol their continued support

for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the rnanagement of the City's

fìnances.

Respectfully submitted, Respectfully submitted,

e-_
Dennis M. Coleman
Finance Dilector/City TleasurerCity Manager
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A Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence in Financial
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Association ofthe United States and Canada to
government ürits and public employee retiremeut

systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (C.AFRs) achieve the highest
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and financial reporting.
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CoxntDo*,, CERTIFIED PU B LIC ACCOUNTANTS

ASSOCIATES, .-,,. 2301 DUPONT DRIVÈ, SUITE 2OO

IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 9261 2
(949) 474-2020

Fâx (949) 263-5520

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Soìana Beach, Califolnia

Indepeldent Auditors' Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statenents of the goverruaelltal aclivities, the
business-type activities, each major fuld, and the aggregate rernaining fund ilfonuation oî the
City of Solana Beach, Califomia, as of and for the year ended June 30;2005, which colleclively
complise the City's basic financial statenents, as listed in the table of contents. These financiál
statements_. are the responsibility of the management of the City of Solana Beach. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statenents based on our audit.

We cor.rducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Anerjca and the starldalds applicable to financial ãudits cóntailled in Got,ernntent
Auditin.g SÍ.an.dards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurauce about whether tl.re
financial statenlents are f¡ee of material misstatement. Au audit includes exarÌliniuu. on a test
basis, evidence suppoling the amounts and disclosures in the financial statelnelìts. Ai'audit also
includes assessing__the accounfing principles used and significa:rt estimates made by
lrlanagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statemeDt preseutalion. We believe tllat
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Iu our opìnìou, the fiuaucial statelìrents leferred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
tlte. resp_ective fir:arlcial position of the Bovcnrncr)lal aclivitìes, rhc business-typc activities, caclr
tttajor lund, alrrl the a€p,r'egate rcmainirrg lulld infolllatioll o1 the City 

-ói 
Solana [ieacìr,

Califomia,.as of June_30, 2005, and the respective changes in hnancial position and cash flows,
where applicable, of the City of Solana Beách, Californla for the year tñen ended in confonnity
with accountiug pr:inciples generally accepted in the United States ðfArnerica.

The itrformation identilled in tbe accompanying table of contents as managentent's discussiol
and altalysis and requi,ed supplemen.tary irfornmti.ott are not a requireã pal1 of the basic
financi_îI statenel.rts, but are supplerìrentary' infonn¿tion required by accointing principles
generally accepled in tlie_United States of America. Vy'e have applied ceirain lirnited"pr:ocedur es,
which consisted principally of inquiries of managenent regaldìirg the rnethods of measurenre¡t
aud presentatiol of the required supplementaly inforn.ration. Hãwever, rve did ¡ot audit the
inlounation and express no opi:rion oüit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of for:ning opinions on the financial statenìenls that
collectively ggrnprise the Cily of Soiana Beach's bãsii hnancial statements. The i¡troductory
sectiot.t, combining and individual norllajor fulld finalcial staten.ìents and statisticai tables aré
presellted for purposes of acldit.ional aralysis aud are not a required parl ol the basic filiancial
staten'ìents. The combining ard jndividual nonmajor fund hnanciäl statements haye been
subjected to the ar-rditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe 1¡asic finalcial stateme.nts and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated in all mátêrial respects iu relatior.r to the basic financiai iìaterl.rents
taken as a whole. Tbe introductory section and- statistical tables have lot beel iutri""iã¿ to ut.
audiling ptocedures applied in the audit of tlle basic financial statenìents un¿, u..åiãingly, *"
express lro opiuion ou them.

M[MßTR5 OI' ,AICPA AND CALIFORNIA SOCIETY OF C[R'T ITD PUßLIC ACCOUNIANTS
M[MÊER OF ,{MERICAN INSTITUTE OI CIRTIFIEI) PUSL¡C ACCOUNTANTS PRIVATE COMJTANIES PRACTICE SICIION



Horolable Mayol and City Council
City of Solana Bcach, Calìforlia
Page Two

In accot'darrce wtlll Got,ernntent Audilin.g SÍandards, we have also issued a report dated
September 21,2005 ou our consideration of the City's intemal conlrol over fir.rancial reporting
aud our tests of its compliance wilh certain provisìons of laws, regulations, contractg gt'anl
agreements, aud other malters. The puq)ose of that report is to describe the scope of our teiting
of irteural control over ftr.rar.rcial reporling and conrpliance and the results of that testing, and noì
to provide an opiniou otr the intemal control over financial reporling or on compliarrce. That
1epor1 is. an ìntegtal _par1 of _an audit performed in accordance with Governñeú Auditing
Stantlards and should be considered in assessing tlre results ofour audit.

âoro / o.-/ 4sso'-.È . ¿. L./-
Septenrber 21 , 2005
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As managemellt of the City of Solana Beach (City), we offel leaders of the City's financial statemerìts
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial âctivities of the City for thó fiscal year encled June
30. 2005. It should be lead irr conjunction with the accompanying transmittal lettel beginning on page i
and the accompar.rying lrasic financial statements. All alnounts, unless othetwisé indi-cateä, 

*are

explessed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHI,IGHTS

o The City's net assets increased to $543,035 as a result of this year's opel.ations.o During the year, the C-ity's taxes, othel governrnental revènues aird busiltess activity levenues
exceeded expenses by $876.¡ Governmental net assets were $522,682.r The total leverlues florn all soulces wele $18,11.5.. The total cost of all City plograrns was $t7,239.o The_Genetal Fund repolted a deficieucy of Levenues undel expenditules and othel financing uses of
$(385).¡ Actual resources Ieceived in the Genefal Fund exceeded final budget try $362 while actual
expenditules wele -$520 less than final budget bel'or.e other financing uscs.o At the end of the fiscal year, unreselved fund balance for the General Fund was $l,297 or l2a/o of
total Genelal Fund expenditules (excludûrg other. financing uses).

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual leport consists of a series of financial statemeltts. The three componenls of the financial
statements ate: (1) Govelnn-rent-wide linancial statements, which include the Staternent of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities. .Ihese 

statements plovide infolmation about the activities of the City as
a whole. (2) Fund financial statements describe how City services are financed in the sholt term as rlvell
as what resoulces are available fot'futule spending. Fund financial statements also leport the City's
operations in mo-t e detail than the government-wide statements by ploviding infolmaiion about ihe
City's rnost significant funds. (3) Notes to the fìnancial stâtements.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The State¡nent of Net Asscts and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

A fi'equerttly asked question regalding the City's financial health is whether the year's activities
contributed positively to the overâll financial well-being. The Staternelt of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities repolt infolmation about ttre City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answelthis question. These statements include ¿rl/ assets and liabilities using the zrccnrá
b,trsi,s rtJ ttccountlng, wliich is similal to the accoruìtil.rg used by most private-sector cornpãnies. All of
tlìe curlent yeal's levenues and expenses ale accounted for legár'dless óf when cash is leceived or. paid.

These two statelnents l'epolt the City's net âssets and changes theleto. Net assets, the differ.ence
between assets and liabilities, âre one way to measuLe the Cityrs financial health, or financial position.
Over time, increases or- decteases in net assets ar-e an indicatol of whether the fiuancial ñealth is
improving or deterioratiug. However, it is impoltant to considel other non-linancial factors such as
changes^in the.City's propelty tax base ol condition of the City's loads to acculately assess the ovelall
health of the City.



The Stalement of Net Assets ald the Statement of Activities, plesent infolrnation about the fbllowing:

. Governmcntal activities - All of the City's basic selvices are cor.rsideled to be goverrlmentâl
aotivilies, including genelal govelnment, cornmunity developrnent, publio salety, public woLks, and
community selvices. Pr-opelty taxes, tlalìsient occupalìcy taxss, sales taxes, and fianchise fees
firllrtcc most of thcsc activitics.

. Plopl'ietafy activities/Business type activities - The City chalges a fee to customels to covel all ol'
lnost of the cost of the services plovided. The City's Sanitation system is lepolted in this category.

. Component unit - The City's govenu.r'rental âctivities include the blending of one separâte legal
entity: The City of Solana Beach Public F'acilities Colporatron. Although legally separate, this
"conìponent. unit" is impoll.ant because thc Cit.y ìs financially accountable lor it. The City of Solana
Beach Public Facilities Corpolation had no tlansactioÍìs, l.ìol'any assets, liabilities ol equity over the
past three fiscal year's.

Reporting the City's Most Signifïcarrt Funds

Fund Financial Staternelrts

The fund fir.rancial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds-not the
City as a whole. Sorne funds ale lequired to be established by State law and by bond covenants.
However', mar'ìagement establishes many othel funds thal aid in tlie administlation of lesources for'
pa|ticular' pll[poses or to l.ì]eet legal rcsponsibilities associatcd with the usage of cerLain taxes, gralìts,
and other rnoney. The City's two kinds of funds, govenunentol. and proprietary, use diffelent
accouutiug approaches as explained below.

. Gorerntncrlîcrl. .fiuuls - Most of the City's basic services ale leported in govermnental funds.
Governmental funds focus on how LesouLces flow in and out with the balances rernaining at year'-
end that are available for spending. These funds ale reported using an accounting method called
nodified occntal, which measures cash and all oíher .fincutcial assets that can reâdily be converted
to caslr. The govetnmental fund statements plovide a detailed ,short-term t,iew of the City's genelal
govcr:nment opel'ations and the basic selvices it pfovides. Govelnmental fund iDfo|mation shows
whether thel's als more or fewer financial resoulces that can be spent in the neal futule to finance
the City's plograms. We describe the lelalionship (ol differ-ences) between governmental at:tivities
(repoftcd in the Statement of Net Asscts and the Statemcnt of Activities) and governmental .funds
thL'ough a leconciliation in Note 1 in the Notes To Basic Financial Statements.

. ProprietaDt .l'uttd.s - When the City charges customels fol the se|vices it plovides, these serviccs a::c
genelally leported in ploplietaly funds. Ploplietaly funds are re¡rorted in the same wây that âll
activities are repoÌted in the Statemerlt of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The City as Trustee

Re¡rorting the City's Fiduciary Res¡ronsibilities

The City is the tl'ustee, ot .litlLrciutl,, fol celtain amouÍìts held on behalf of dcvelopels, ploperty ownels,
and othels. These fiducialy activities ale repolted ir sepalate Statements of Fiducialy Net Assets and
Changes in Fiduoialy Net Assets. The City is responsible for ensuling ll'rât the assets are usetl fol their'
intended purposes. Thelefole, I'íducialy activities ale excluded fi'om the City's other fìnancial
stâtements because the assets c¿unot be used to financc opemtions.



THE CITY AS À WHOI,E

Out analysis focuses on the net assets (Table L) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the City's
govclnmental and husillcss acl iv il ies.

Table 1

City of Solana Beach Net Assets
(in Thousands)

Governmental
Activ¡ties

Business
Activities

Total

2005

Assets:
Current and

other assets $ 16,670
Capital assets, net 51 1 ,814

Total assets 528,484

Líab¡lities:
Long-term

debt outstand¡ng 4,160
Other liabilities 1,642

Total liabilities 5,802

Net assets:
lnvested in capital
assets, net of debt 509,151

Restricted 2,221
Unrestricted 1 1 ,310

Total net assets S 522,682

2004
(as restated) 2005

$ 17,729 $ 25,744
510,243 4,258

527,972 30,002

3,946 9,094
1 ,325 555

2004
2005 (as restated)

2004
(as restatêd)

$ 25,558 $ 42,414 g 43,287
4,108 516,072 514,35.1

29,666 558,486 557,638

9,897 13,254 13,843
311 2j97 1,636

5,271 9,649 10,208

507,357 4,258 4,109
3,699 851 1,657

11 ,645 15,244 13,692

s___54t91- $___?9É99_ $___19499_

15,451 15,479

513,409 51 1,466
3,072 5,356

26 ,554 25 ,337

$ 543.035 $ 542,159



The City's combined rÌet assets for the fiscal year ended June 30,2005 wele f;-543,03-5. The City has
chosen to account fol its sa¡litation opelations in arr cnier'¡rlise fund, which is shown as Business
Activities on Table l The City's rlct assets fol govelnrnental activities decreased frorn Íì522,701 to
$522,682. The following is an explanation of the govelnmental âctivity changes between fiscal yeals as

shown in Table I :

Current and othel assets decreased $1,059 oL 6.0% princi¡rally due to decleased cash holdings
and leceivables flom othel govelnrnental agencics.
Capital assets increased $1,571 (net of $24,011 depreciatiorì and disposition) as detailed in
Table 4. Duling fiscal year'2004-05, portions of the Coastal Rail Trail ploject were completed.
The Trail is a 2¡nile stletch o1'land between Highway 101 and tlie railroad tlacks that is being
developed into a beautifully native lardscaped walk/bike pathway inclusive of alt nodes and
olrselvation decks. hr addition, the File Department acquiled a new file engine (tliple
combination purnper).
Govelnmental lorlg^term debt incleased lì214 due to an inclease in claims payablc and deposits
payable. See Table 5 fol addiLional detail.
Other liabilities iucleased $317 plimalily due to accounts payable relating to majol plojects.
Invested in capital assets net of debt increased $1,794 frorn capital asset additions.
Restricted net assets decleased $1,478 plimalily because the City finished a sigr.rificant ¡roltion
of the Coastal Rail Tlail and the Rosa Str:eet pedestrian/bicycle bridge, and othel projects thât
wele ongoing frorn the plevious fiscal year'.

Unrestricted uet assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations
without constlaints establishcd by debt covenants or othel' legal requirements, decleased fiom
$11,645 at June 30, 2004 to lì11,310 at the end of this year'. This net decrease of $335 is due
principally to the costs associated with the decision to leorgalize the oity attolney's office flom
an in-house attorney to outside counsel.

Govelnmenfal Activities

Tlre cost o1' all Gover-nrnental activities this yeal was $ 14,440 as shown on Table 2 and 2.1 . $ 1,946 of
this cost was paid for by those who directly benefited frorn the programs, $2,009 was subsidizcd by
grants leceived from other govemmental olganizatior.rs for both capital and opelating activities, aud
tì10,466 was financed through genelal City revenues. Ovelall govelnrnental program revenues,
including intergovernmental aid and fees lbr services wele $3,955, Iterns of'signilìcance within Table 2
afe:



Revenues:

' Charges fot'services iucreased by 19.8o/o as a result of increased plan check and inspection fees,
citation fees collected flom instituting the Redflex led light camera enforcement- prÕgrarn, and
incleased collections from parking tickets issued.

' Grants and contlibutions decleased l:y 36.6ak due to thc inhelent natul'e of timing diffèr'ences
between actual ptoject expenditures and whcn reimbursements are leceived. The City rnakes
evely elïot t to lequest reimbursemcut from granting agencies shortly aftel project expeuditules
are kuown and paid.

' Tlie general revenue câtegories lose over 9.2a/o predominantly because of incleased motor'
vehicle-in-lieu receipts, transient occupancy tax collccted from toulists staying in short-term
vacation rentals, and increased investment income.

Expenses:

' General Government expenses increased $'188 or 42.0o/a due to costs related to the city attorney
staffing reolganization and increased letilernent costs.

' The Public Safety line item incleased by 5.0a/c, due to anr.rual incleases lelated to police
protection and increased fifefighte| retitement costs.

' Public Wotks experienced a 15.2a/r' increase in expenses due prirnalily to incteased LetiÌerìent
costs and payments to Redflex, the City's red light camela enfor.cement program.

' Conrmunity Development costs increased 32.2a/o rcsulting fiom incleased plivâte construction
building permit plocessing and professional services, incleased retirement costs, and costs
associated with plolèssional selvices plovided for the Cedros Avenue special commelcial zone
and residential commulity charactel issues.

' Community Services increased 5l.60/o due primarily to depreciation costs associated with
placing the Coastal Rail Ttail into service.

r Interest olÌ Long-teÍm Debt lealized a decrease of 6.8olo tesultirg fi'om lower amortized intelest
payments on curlent debt and by not incur..r'ing any new debt.



Table 2
City of Solana Beach Changes in Net Assets

(¡n Thousands)

GoveLnnlental Business

2005
2oo4

(as reslated) 200-5

2(i04
(¿ls restâ1ed)

2004
(âs rcsrated)2005

1,946

1,751

4,031
?, t ¿\7

712

1 ,625

256

2,913

3,956
4,971

657

5,476

258

1,751

4,031
5,723

876

5,185

256

2,913

3,956
4,971

755

$ 3,530 $ 3,560 $

98164

14,421 14,378 3,694 3,658 18,115 '18,036

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for serv¡ces
Operat¡ng grants

and contributions
Cap¡tal grants

and contributions
General revenues;

Property taxes
Other taxes
Other

Total revenues

Expensesl
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community

development
Community

services
lnterest on

long-term debt
Sanitation

Total expenses

lncrease(decrease)
in net assets

Net assets - 7/l /04

Net assets - 6/30/05

14,440 12,426

2,799

2,799

2,658
5,700
4,725

805

414

138

1 ,870
5,426
4,100

609

273

148

414

138
2,799

1,870
5,426
4,100

609

t7¿7

148

2,658
5,700
4,725

805

2,323

17,239 14.749

(1e)

522,701

1 ,952

520,749

895

19,458

1 ,335

18,1 23

876 3,287

542,159 538,872

s 522.682 6 522.701 $ 20,353 s 19.458 $ 543.035 $ 542.159



Fiscal Year 2005
Governmental Activities

(Graphic representation of Table 2 in percentages)

Sources ofRevenue Progrâm Expenses

Net Cost of Governmental Activities

The City's programs include: General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Community
Development, and Community Services. Each programs' net cost (total cost less revenues generated by
the activities) is presented on Table 2.1. The net cost shows the extent to which the City's general taxes
support each of the City's programs.

Capltal
Grants

12o/c

Opêrat-



Table 2.1

Net Cost of Governmental Activities
(in Thousands)

TotalCost
of Services

Program
Revenues

Net Cost
of Services

2005200420042005 2005 2004

General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Community services
lnterest on long-term debt

Totals $ 14,440 I 12,426 $ 3,955 $ 4,794 $ (10,485) $ (7,632)

2,658
5,700
4,725

805
414
138

1,870 $
5,426
4,100

609
273
148

$$
613

3,720
402
59

(2,658)
(5,06't)
(2,017)

(255)
(356)
(1 38)

$ (1,870)
(4,813)

(380)
(2O7',)

(214)
(1 48)

639
2,708

550
58

Total Cost of Services, Program Revenues & Net Cost
Governmental Activities

(in Thousands)

$5,000

$3,000

$1,000

($1,000)

($3,ooo)

($5,ooo)

t tTotalCost of Seruices W Program Revenues tr Nef Cosf

Total resources available during the year to finance governmental operations were $537 ,122 consisting
of net assets (restated) at July l, 2004 of $522,701, program revenues of $3,955, and general revenues
of $10,466. Total governmental activities during the year were $14,440; thus net assets decreased by
$19 to 5522.682.
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Business Type Activities

Net assets of the Proplietaly Fund (Business Type activities) at June 30, 2005, as ref'lected in Table I
wele $20,353. As shown in Table 3, amounts pãid by users of the systern were $3,530 while the cost of
ploviding all Ploplietaly (Business Type) activities this year was $2,799 r'esr:lting in a gain of $731.
Net assets increased by $895 ot 4.60/o, primalily due to increased investment urcornJ and holding
experìsc:\ ilt Iine with Ìcvenues.

Total Cost
of Services

Net Cost
of Services

Table 3

Net Cost of Business Activities
(in Thousands)

Program
Fìevenue

Sanitation

2005 2004

$ 2,799 ç 2,323 $ 3.530 $ 3,560 1 ,237

fiscal Year 2005
Total cost of Services, Program Revenues & Net cost - Business Activities (in thousands)

tr Total Cost of
Services

E Program
Revenues

B Net Cost

2005 2004 2005 2004

73'l

t1



General l'und Budgetary Highlights

The final applopliations fol' the City's General Furd at year'-end were $520 less than actual
expenditut'cs pr'íor to other financing uses. The budget to actual vaLiance ir appropliations was
principally due to conservative estilnates at nrid-yeal by managcment. Actual revenues compared
favolably to the firal budget r:esulting in a $362 excess (excluding othel financing soutces). Budget
anlendrÌìents and supplemental appropliations weLe made during the norrnal course of business to
ilrclease applopriatior.rs for unanticipated expenditures aftel adoption of the oliginal buclgct. Significant
supplernental appropriations wele:

. $385 fol additional outside counsel and the cost of leolganizing thc city attoniey's office fi'orn
an in-house attorney to outside counsel,

o $41 fol costs to covel'the Finance Dilector and Citv Clerk vacancies.
. $35 for start up costs fol the led light can-rer:a enforLcr¡ent prograrìr,
o $30 fol an assessmell engineel fol the utility undelglounding projects,
o $76 toward valious consulting services lelating to cuLlent and future capital ptojects, and
. $251 towald plofessional selvices lelatir:rg to stleet maintenance and tlaffic safety.

Significant budgetaly valiations between certain departments' final amended budget versus actual f'or
the general fund were:

a

LegaÌ selvices: gleatel than anticipated costs werc incuncd for the changeover in the city
attorney's office lrom an in-house attorney to outside counscl.
h.rlbnnation systems: savings occurred flom budgeted equipment, tlaining, and plofessional
selvices being unspent.

Suppolt selvices: actual damage clairns paid were significantly lowel than budgeted.
Juniol lifeguard: as palt of the City blinging the juniol lifeguard plograrn in-house, anticipated
expense in special department supplies, vehicle maintenauce, equipmerìt pulchases and
ttavel/meetings were not incurled.
Code and parking enforcernent: pass-through penalty paynìents to the County ofSan Diego and
State of Calilolnia, retilenìent, and health benefit costs werc lower anticipated.
Stteet and other: plofessiolal servìce expense was lowel than budgeted in stleet maintenance,
tlaffic sal'ety and envilonmental selvices.
Building Selvices: building pelrnit plocessing and professional selvices for plivate
development increased significantly near tlìe close of the fiscal year.

12



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEIìT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The capital assets of the City ate tlìose âssets thaf are used in pelformance of City lunctions including
inlì'astruclure assets, Caprtal assets include equiprnent, buildirigs, land, palk faciiities, and roads. Thõ
City valucd ald tecolded land lights-of-way in the amount of $469,867 duling fiscal year 2005 which
w^as ¡rleviously excluded liom capital assets. GASB Staternelit No. 34 allows-foul yeãr's after the year.
of oliginal implernentation to have a complete inventoly of infrastructure related capital ussetr. îhe
City implemented GASB 34 in fiscal year 2001.

At June^3O, 2005, net capital assets of the govelnmental activities totaled $511,814 and the net capital
assets of the business-type activitics totaled {i4,258. Depreciation on capital assets is recognized iri the
govetttmeut-wide financial statelnenl.s. (Sec Table 4 and Note 5 to the financial statements.)

The City's five-yeal Capital hnprovemeÍìt Plan projects spending of $20,518 thlough fiscal 2009-10.
Ovel the next five yeals, funding will come from cull'eni fuld [ralances, plojected levenues anci the
newly fonned Redevelopmer.rt Agency. S ignificant projects are: Clilf Stieei Pedestlian Blitlge, the
Fletchel Cove Master Plalì lmpleûìentation, and the Interstate 5 and Lomas Santa Fe Intelchange:

Tabte 4
City of Solana Beach Capital Assets at Year-End

(Net of Depreciation)
(ln Thousands)

Governmental
Activit¡es

Business
Activit¡es

Total

2005
2004

(as restated) 2005

Land
Bu¡ldings &

lmprovemenls
Equipment &

Vehicles
lnfrastructure
Work in Progress

$ 473,45'1 $ 473,451

8,632 4,097

851 554
27 ,482 29,151
1,398 2,990

$ 51 1 ,814 $ 510,243

3,756

2

448

3,917

4

175

$ 4,258 $ 4,108 $ 516,072 S 514,351

l3

---- 
2oo4 

-- 

zou
2005 (as restated)

$12$12

(as restated)

$ 473,463 $ 473,463

12,388 8,014

853 558
27 ,482 29,1 51

1,886 3,165



Debt

At year'-end, the City had $4,160 in govelnrnental type debt, and $9,094 in ploprietâr'y debt (including
premium or debt. issuance). The debt is a liability of the government and arÌìounts to $989.11 per'
capita. (See Table 5 ar-rd Note 6 to tl.re finanoial statcl'r'rcl.ìts for detailccl descliptions)

Table 5
City of Solana Beach Outstanding Debt at Year-End

(ln Thousands)

Governmental
Activit¡es

Busin ess
Activit¡es

Lease Revenue
Bonds

Loans Payable
Cap¡tal Leases

Payable
Compensated

Absences
Claims Payable
Deposits Payable

2005 2004 2005 2004

$ 2,915 $ 3,100
$ 9,025 $ 9,882

-39

258 273 16 15

167 11 53
820 523

2005

$ 2,915
9,025

274
220
820

2004

$ 3,100
9,882

39

288
11

523

$ 4,160 $ 3,946 9,094 9,897 $ 13,254 $ 13,843

Ntr,XT YEAII'S BUDGIìT AND ECONOMIC FACTORS

In considering the City Budget fol fiscal year' 2005-2006, the City Council and nìarÌagement wele
optimistic about levenue stability due to the passage of Ploposition lA which pr'otects local funding for
public safety, health, liblaries, patks, and othel locally deliveled selvices and prohibits the State fiom
reducing local government propefiy tax proceeds. It also lequires local sales tax reverues lemain with
local govemrnent and be spent fol local pulposes. Ovelall, the budget anticipates Genelal Fund
revenue growth of approximately 5.60/o. The CIP budget wâs set to be $8,302 for the upcoming year.
Ploperty Tax and Sales Tax Revenues were estirnated to grow approximately '7.7o/a zrnd 9.8o/o
resp{3ctively.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMIìNT

This financial report is designed to plovide oul citizens, tâxpayers, custolnels, investors, and creditols
with a genelal ovelview of the City's finances and to show the City's fiduciary responsibility fol the
funds it receives. If you have questiolls about this leport or need additional financial inf'olmation,
colltact the City's Finance DepaltrneÍìt, at the City of Solana Beach, 635 South Highway l0l, Solana
Beaclr, Californi a 9201 5 or online: http://www.cí.solana-beach.ca.us.
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CITY OF SOLÂNÄ BEÄCH
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2005

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash and investments Q.{ote 2)
Receivables:

Accounts
Taxes
lnterest

Due from other governnlents
Restlicted cash with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Long term receivable
Deferred debt issuance cost
Investment in joinf venture (including
unamortized.premium of $260,838) Q.{ote 8)

Capital assets Q.{ote 5):
Non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest payable

Unearned revenue
Premium on debt issuance
Noncunent liabilities (Note 6):

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of
accumr"rlated depreciation and related debt
Restncted for:

Community development
Public safety
Public works
Debt sewice

Unrestricted

Total net assets

$ 15,535,379

19,396
438,918
101,310
322,693
25t,7 rs

474,849,238
61,03 5,83 9

(24,070,826)

528,483,662

1,368,898
97,556
11,284

164,571

679,-/9s
3,479,900

5,802,004

509,I 50,966

231,968
7 s,ltl

1,913,957

11,309,6s0

_:22$JéA_

See accompanying notes to basic financial staterìtents
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5,962,887

)oR ?o')

qa,Isg

RìO ìÁ?

46,53s
731,469

17,8 16,81 1

500,1 17

6,998,620
(3,240,3ss)

30,002,3 3 8

40,636
3,260

t29,633

382,127

461,297
8,632,294

9,649,247

4.258,382

21,498,266

318,188
43 8,918
149,409
322,693

I ,091,078
46 5ì5

73t,469

17,816,811

475,349,355
68,034,459

(27,311,181)

558,486,000

r,409,534
100,816
140,917

164,51]L

382,127

1,141,092
12,112,194

15,4s1,251

5 r 3,409,348

231,968
7 s,11'l

1,913,951
850,800

26,s53,559
850,800

t5,243,909

__?9tÉt!21_ 543,034,149



CITV OF SOLANA tsEACH
Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2005

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Total
Chargesfor Contributions Contributions Program

Experrses Services and Grants and Gl'auts Revenues

Govemmental activities:

General govemment S 2,657 ,830
Public safe¡'
Public wolks

5,699,742 528,680 - 110,626 639,306

4.725$13 809,414 257,689 1,640,684 2,701,787

Comnrunity development 804,491 549,425 - 549,425
- 58,192Community services 413,147 58,192

Interest on long-term debt 138,123 -

Total govemmental activities 14,439,546 1,94t111 257,689 1,751,310 3,954,110

Business-type activities:
Sanitatior

Total business-tyle actjvities
2,198,884 3,530,427 - 3,530,427

rotalprimarygovemnent _þll_233,ß9_ __:Ary]:3_ -_-Js7é8e_ _____1,2!_U_l!_ ___J!31]2_

General levenues:

Taxes:

Propeúy taxes, levied for general purpose

Transient occupancy taxes

Sales laxes
Franchise taxes

Other taxes

Invesû¡eut iucome

Uses of rnoney ar.rd propelty

Other

Total generai reveuues

Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning of yeal, as restated (Nôte 1 5)

Net assets at end ofyear

See accornpanying notes to basic fiuancial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activif ies Activities

(2,6st,830)
(s,060,436)
(2,017,826)

(2ss,066)
(3 s s,ss5)
( 13 8,123)

(i0,484,836)

(10,484,836)

Total

(2,6s7,830)
(s,060,436)
(2,017,826)

(2ss,066)
(3 s 5,ss5)
(13 8,123)

(10,484,836)

731.,543 131,s43

731.,543 (9,7 s3,293)

4,031,269
183,s39

2,661,448
s21,996

t,7 s6,042

487,982
34,902

352,889

10,ó30,067

816,114

542,1 57 ,97 5

543,034,749

164.044

4,031,269
7RI5tq

2,661,448
521,996

1,7 56,042
ìr l o'ìR

34,902
3 s2.8 89

10,466,023

( 1 8,8 13)

522,700,411

$ s22,681,658

164,044

895,587

19,45'7,504

20,353,091

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF SOLANA tsEAC}I
Governmental Fund Types

lJalance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Special Other
General Revenue Governmental llotals
Fund TEA 21 /TEA Funds 2005 2004Assets

Cash and investments (Note 2)
Receival¡1es:

Accounts
Tax
Interest

Due from other goverïments
Restricted cash with fiscal agent (Note
Due from other funds (Note 3)

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

l.iabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Deferrecl revenue
Due to other funds (Note 3)

Total liabilities

Fr¡nd balances:
Ìlesened for encumbrances
Reseived for debt service
Rescr¿ed for housing
Resewed for capital projects
Reseled for developer fees
Unreserved:
Designated for':

Specific projects and programs
repoÍed in:
Gene¡al fund
Special revenue funds

Undesignated, reporled iu:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects fur.rds

Total fund balanoes (deficit)

Total liabilities and
and fund balances

910,442,615

13,450
403,134
6q 10?

296,244
2)

- 5,092,764 1s,s35,379 16,151,562

400 5,546 19,396 145,860
- 35,784 438,918 608,442
- 32,008 101,310 54,367
- 26,449 322,693 s 16,950
- 251,115 251,715 251,666

r,247,919 - - 1,247,919 878,162

ÅJ2,412,ó5!_ ________ 409_ _-__t_4!42þÍ_ __11-9!l Ê39_ 1 8.607.60e

$ 863,093
qs 0¿l

8l 9,998

127,4-65

4r6,897

- 2,513

- ts2,533

97,ss6 2t2,121
819,998 522,726
152,533 633,4t7

55,182 450,623 1,368,898 922,654

I ,118,134 6s2,s36 r ,2s6,234 1,686,904 1.169,680

63,567 447,287
2s1,115
341,698
101.14r

638,319 4,1,89,001
2s1,715 751,666
341,698 43s,267
101,141 101,141
416,897 37s,1,79

R R5? q¿5

| )q1 ))\
_ (715,703)

- 8,8s2,945 8,408,306
408,021 408,021 409,722

- 1.,297,223 2,10s,729
t,985,482 1,269,779 (1,157,648)

-______________:_ - 652,688 652,688 319,560

10,694,530 (052,11ó) 4.188,032 14,230,426 ts.q7.q29

ÅJ292þ54 ______-!99_ -__t4442þ5_ _Jl_911-339___t!_6Q2,6q9_

See accon'rpanying ltotes to basic financial statemetìts,
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CITY OF SOL,A.NA BEACH
Governrnental F unds

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30. 2005

Fur.rd balances of govemnental fuuds S 14,230,426

AmouDts leporled for govemmental activities in the statemeut of net assets are

different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included
as financial resoulces in governmental fund activity.

Capital assets 53 5,8 85,077

Accunulated depreciation (24,010,826)

Long tenn debt and compensated absences that have not been included in
the governmental fund activity,

Lease revenue bonds payable (2,915,000)

Claims payable (166,813)

Compensated absences (257,884)

Accmed interest payable for the curettt potlion of interest due on Debt

service has not been reporled in t1.re governmental funds. (1 1,284)

The annual business license revenue collected in January each fiscal year

pertains to a license period extending six molths into the following fiscal year.

Thelefore, six montlis Levenue is recorded as defelred revetlue. (12,038)

Net assets of govemmental activities $ 522,681,6s8

See accornpanf lìg lìotes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF SOLANA tsEACI{
Governmentâl Fund Types

Stâtemertt of Revenues, Expenditures ând Changes in F'und Balances
Year ended June 30. 2005

Special Revenue

Revenues:
Taxes and assessmetìts
lntergovemmental
Licenses and pennits
Charges for selices
Fiues and forfeitures
Investment ilìcome
Uses ofmoney and property
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cunent:

General govemment
Public safety
Public works
Cou'ìmunity development
Community services

Capital outlay
Debt service (Note 6):
Principal retirement
Ilìterest

Total expenditules

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues
over (under) expenclitures

Other hnancing sources (uses):
Transfe¡s in (Ì.{ote 4 )
Transfers out (Note 4 )

Total other financû1g sources
(uses)

Net change in fund balances

Furìd balaÍìces (defìcit), beginning ofyear

Fund balances (deficit), end ofyear

General
Fund TEA2I / TFA

2,599,981
5,666,1.26
1,517 ,557

792,434
236,705

Other
Governmental

Funds

- 2,466
_ 247 ,667- 640,127_

808,490 3,346,314

Totals

2,602,447 1,94s,506
s,913,793 s,4ts,6s7
2,1s1,684 2,623,014
792,434 608,030
236,70s 237,370

4,1s4,864 1,890,368

f;8,545,931 - 722,821 9,268,752 t0,462,543
1,415,906 1,022,692 1,462,848 3,901,446 2,187,223
305,807 305,807 266,716
404,523 - 16,510 421,033 379,462
336,224 336,224 175,062
213 "123 - 15,115 228,238 121,059
34,902 - 95,700 130,602 80,056

416,023 - 6,00s 422,028 360,489

11,672,439 1,022,692 2,318,999 15,01.4,130 14,032,610

224,025 224,025 249,403
139,681 139,681 151,102

10,812,803 808,490 4,600;40 16,221,633 13,120,4s0

8s9.636 214,202 (7,28r,341) (1,207,s03) 912,160

2.195 1,246,722 1,248,917 706,947
(1,246,722) - (2,19s) (1,248,917) 1106,947)

(t ,244 ,s27) - 1 ,244 ,521

(384,891) 214,202 (1,036,814) (r,207,s03) e12,r6o

1r,019,421 (866,338) s,224,846 1s,437,929 14,s2s,169

$t0,694,510 ______ß2p6) _-l!88!2_ J!23!!2!_ !4lp2e_

See accompanying notes to Itasic financial statelnents.
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CITY OF SOLANABEACH
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenueso Expenditures,

and Changes iu Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2005

Net change in fund balances - total goverrunental funds

Anounts repoúed for govenrmental activities in the statement of activities differs
from the amounts repofted in the statement ofactivities because:

Govenl¡ental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the costs ofthose assets is allocated over their estìmated useful lìves
as depreciation expense. This is the ar.nount by which capital outlays exceeded

depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay, net ofdisposals
Depreciation, net of accumulated depreciation disposals

$(1,207,503)

3,923,6s9
(2,352,807)

Repaynent of debt service principal is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the

repaynent reduces long-term liabilities in the statement ofnet assets. 224,025

Accrued interest for debt servìce. This is the net change in
accrued interest for the cunent period. 1,558

Compensated absences and claims payable expenses reporled in the statement of activities
do not require the use ofcuuent llnancial resources and therefore are not leported as

expenditures ìn goverunerfal funds. (139,708)

Since the amount ofbusiness license revenue collected in J anuary ofeach liscal
year pertains to a license period cxlending six rnon rs into the following fiscal
year, it is recorded as defened revenue on the statement ofnet assets. 2,220

Revenue collected this fiscal year was reported as deferred revenue
in the govemmental funds at tlre end of last fiscal year and defered revenue
was accordingly reduced this year by that arnount. (470,25'7)

Change in net assets ofgovermlental activities $ (18,813)

See accompanying notes to baslc l'lnancial statemerlts.
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CITY OF SOLANA tsEACH
Proprietary Fund

Statement of Net Àssets
June 30, 2005

Assets
Cunent assets:

Cash and inveshrents (Note 2)
Restticted cash with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Receivables:

Accourts
Interest

Due from joint venture

TotaÌ cureut assets

Noncurrent assets:

Sewer fees receivable
Deferred debt issuance cosls
Investment in joint venture (including unamortized
premium of $260,838)

Capital assets, net (Note 5)

Total noncurent assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Cunent liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued salal ies and ber.refits
Acclued interest payable
Loans payable (Note 6)
Compensated absences

Total cunent liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable
Claims payable
Premium on debt issuance
Loan payable (Note 6)

Total noncunent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of accumulaled
depreciation and related debt

Restricted for debt service
Unr-estricted

Total net assets

Enterprise Fund-Sanitation
2005 2004

$ 5,962,887 5,780ó28
839,363 847,831

298,-/92 85,004
48,099 20,772

130,341

7,149,141 6,863,976

46,53s
131,469

62,046
780,234

17,816,811 11,8s1,s70
4,258,382 4,131,145

22,8s3,197 22,825,59s

30,002,338 29,689,s71,

40,636 168,240
3,260 9,473

129,633 133,383
460,000 4s0,000

1,297 2,369

634,826 163,465

14,269 12,439
53,025

382,127 407,602
8,s6s,000 9,025,000

9,014,421 9,445,041.

9,649,247 10,208,506

4,258"382 4,919,s'76
850,800 809,381

15,243,909 r 3,692,108

$20.353.091 i9.481.06s

See accompanying notes to basic financial statenents.
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Operating revenues:
Charges for sales and seruices:

Sewer seruice and comection fees
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales ald services
Administration
Depreciation

Total operatirig expenses

Total operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) :

Jnvestment income
Intelest expense
Arr. oÍization of premium
Share in joint venture net loss

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net change in net assets

Net assets, begiruing of year
Prior period adjustment (Nofe 15)

Net assets, beginning as restated

Net assets, end of year

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Proprietary Fuud

Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fuud Net

Year Ended June 30, 2005
¡\ssets

Enterprise Fund - Sanitation
2005 2004

$ 3,516,154 3,s44,'/15
14,273 15,006

3,530,427 3,ss9,72t

1;165,618 1,574,508
187,833 113,923
163,315 t46,455

2,116,826 1,894,886

1,413,601 1,664,835

164,044 98,406
(370,92s) (311,421)
(10,945) (10,e45)

(300,188) (99,410)

(s18,014) (329,430)

895,s87 1,335,405

19,481,06s
(23,s6r)

18,145,660

19,457,504 18,145,660

_q?gjs3!g-t_ _$1119!9q_

See accompanyillg notes to basic fìnancial statements.
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CITY OIì SOI.ANA BEACII
Proprietary Furrd

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended June 30, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received fron customers and other goverrments
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and seryices
Cash paynents to ernployees for services
Cash received for other operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows fi'orn capital related and financing activities:
Principal pa)4nents on long-term liabilities
Interest paid on long-tenn liabilities
Payments on issuance ofdebt
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used for capital related and financing activities

Cash flows from invesling activities-irferest income

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, begirming of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear

Reconciliation ofcash equivalents to the statenent ofnet assets
Cash and investments repoÍed on statement ofnet assets
Cash and inveshnents with fiscal agent repofied on statement
ofnet assets

Less: Investments that do not qualify as cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation ofoperating incone to net cash
used for operating activities:

Oper ating incorre
Adjusfnrents to reconcilc operatiug incorne

lo net cash used lor operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts leceivable
(hrcrease) decrease in sewer fees receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from SEPA.joìnt venture
hrcrease (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Net provided by opelating âctivities

Noncash investing. capital and fiuarcing activities:
During the year June 30,2005, there were noncash iuvestment

to the decrease in share of.joint ventur..e equity; and $10,945
of debt premium.

Enterprise Fund -Sanitation
2005 2004

$ 3,317,877 3,621,824
(1.70e.9r6) (2.118,083)
(193,288) (i70,831)

14,27 3 I 5,006

|.428,946 t,34t,916

(47 5.41s) t455,47 5)
(32s,910) (268,656)
Ø68.711) (203.822)
(126,631) (331,926)

(l,396,733) (t,2s9,8'/91

136,il7 10r,760

168,330 189,797

5,795,004 5,60s,207

_$_L96Jll4_ ___1J95,004

s,962,887 s,780,628

839,363 84t,831
(838,916) (833,4ss)

*$_l,gúJJl_4_ ___1J9t 004

1,664,83s

r46,45s
61,s97
\J,J tZ

(130,341)
(413,234)

ì nat

-

_$_l_428p45_ __-1,3 47.91 6

activities of: $300,1 88 which lelated
rvhich rclated to the aìnotlizatiorl

$ 1,413,601

163,315
(213,788)

15,511
130,341
(80,792)

758

See accompanying notes to basic ñnancial statements.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Agency Fund

Statement of Fiduciary Àssets and Liabilities
June 30, 2005

Assets

Cedros Avenue
Assessment I)isrict

Cash and investments
l¡terest receivable

Benefit fees receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Due to bondholders

s12,706
58

s 22,023
64

2

s12,764 $ 22,089

$12,764 $ 22,089

See accompanying notes to basic financial stateÌnellts.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2005

(i) Reporling Entitv and Summarv of Sìqnificaff Accounting Policies

(a) Summarv of Siqnificant Accountins Policies

The basic fìnancial statements of the City have been prepared in confonlity with
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to govenxìent units. The
Govemnental Accourfing Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing goverrunental accounting and financial reporling
principles.

The Financial Reporling Entity

The financial statements of the City of Solala Beach include the fìnancial activities
of the City and the Solana Beach Public Facilities Corporation.

Since the Solana Beach City Council acts as the Board of Directors and is able to
irnpose its will on the the Public Facilities Corporation, the City is consideted to be
the primary governrnent and the other entity is a component unit. Additionally, since
the goveming boards of tlie City and the component unit are the same, the furancial
statements ofthe City and the component unit are blended. Separate component unit
financial stâtemenls ar-e not issued for the Solana Beach Publii Facilìties
Corporation.

The City of Solana Beach was fonned July 1, 1986 after an election held June 3,
1986 ui the proposed incorporated area. The City's incorporation involved a
rcorganization consisting prirnanly ofthe inco¡poration ofthe City ofSolana Beach;
the detachment of tenitory from the Ca¡diff Sanitation Disûìct ancl annexation of
the same territory to the Soiana Beach Sanitation District; the establishment of the
Solana Fire Protection District and Solana Beach Sanitation District as subsidìary
disfiicts of tire City; and the establishment of five inrprovement (special revenue)
distlicts of the City which coincide with five previously existing-county service
areas (CSAs). The City merged the Fire District ìnto the City by dissolving the
Disûct ar-rd creating a separate Fire DepaÍment within the City's General Fund
efÍèctrve January l, 1988. Effective July 1, 1990 the Solana Beach sanitation
Dislrict was dissolved and is now a deparlment of the City.

The Solana Beach Public Facilities Corporation was incorporated on July 25, 1990,
and is a nonprofit public benefit corporation duly orgariized and existing under the
Nonprofit Public Bene{it Corporatiol Law for the purpose of benèfìting and
canying out the purposes of the City of Solana Beach, by pròviding for the plaming,
development, acquisitiou, construction, improvement, extension, iepair, renovation
and./or financing of public buildings, works, projects, facilities, fumishings and
equipment for ûre benefit or use ofthe City.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACI-I

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reporling Entitv and Sumûrarr' of Simificant Accountins Policies. (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accounling and Measureûent Focus

The basic financial statenlents ofthe City are composed of the following:

¡ Govemment-widefinancialstatenents
o Fund financial slatemenïs
o Notes to basic financial statements

Financial reporting is based upon all GASB pronouncements, as well as the FASB
Stater.nents and Interpretations, APB Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulleliris that were issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989 are not followed in the preparation of the accompanying
financial statements.

Govemment-wide Financial Statements

Govemment-wide financial statements display information about the reporling
goverrurlent as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statemeuts
include sepalate columns for the govemmental and busirress-type activities of the
primary goveDment (including its blended con'ìponent units). Eliminations bave
been made in the Statement of Activities so that certâin allocated expenses are
recorded only once (by the function to which they were allocated). However,
general govemment expenses have not been allocated as indirect expelses to the
various functions of the City.

Govelrrnrent-wide fínancial statements ate presented using the econontic
resources tneasurenxent focus and Tbe accrual basis- of dccounting. Under tlie
econonllc resources measurement focus, a1l (both cunent and long-term)
economic resources and obligations of tlre reporling goven.ìment are reported in
tlre govemment-wide hnancìal statements. Basis of accöutxting refers to when
reverlues and expenses ale recognized in the accounts and reporled in the financial
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and lial¡ilities resulting fi'om exchange and exchangeJike
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses,
gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting frorn non-exchange transactions are
recognized in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33 govemment-wide activity
requirements.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACIJ

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Contilued)

ftl nepgfrnslEltity and Sum

(b) Basis of Accountins and Measurement Focus. (Contiuued)

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and pa¡.rnents
made by_ parties outside of the reporting govenrment's citizenry if that mótìey is
restlicted to a particular prog¡am: Progratr revenues are uetied witli program
expenses in the statement ofactivities to present the et cost of eacli progrãm.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-
wide linancial statements, rather than reported as an expendìture. Þroceeds of
loug-tenn debt are recorded as a liability in the govemnrent-wide financial
statèments, rather than as an other financing-source. Añrounts paid to reduce long-
term indebtedness of the reporling goverruneú are repoÍed as a reduction of tlîe
related liability, rather than as an expenditure.

Fund Financial Statemeuts

The underlying ac-counting system of the City is organized and operated on the
basis of separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a seþarale set of selfl
balancing accour'ìts that cornprise its assets, lìabilities, fund eqúity, revenues and
expenditures or expellses, as appropriate. Govemmental resouròes-are allocated to
and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are
to be spent and the rleans by which spending áctivrties are controlled

Fund financial statements for the primary government's govemrnental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds are presented after the govemmenlivide financiai
statemerlts. These statements display information about the major fund
individlally and nomnajor funds in the aggregate for govemnental and enterpr.ise
funds. Fiduciary statements ilclude finar.rcial infomration for- fiduciary fulds and
similar component units. Fiduciary funds of the City prirnarily represent assets
held by the City in a custodial capacity for other individuals or oiganìzations.

Govemmental Funds

In the furrd financial statements, govemmental funds are presented using tlie
ntodiJìed-accrual basis of accounÍing. Their revenues ar.e reòogrized wherithey
become measural¡le a¡d available as ¡el cutrent assets. Measurable r¡eans thát
the amounts can be estimated, or otherwise detelmined. At'ailable means that the
aÌnounts were collected durìng the reporting period or soon enough thereafter to
be available.to Jilance ihe elpenditures accruèd for the reporlilg pãriod. The city
uses an availability period of60 days,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reportine Entity and Su

(b) Basis of Accountinq and Measurement Focus. (Continued)

Sales taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, gas taxes, motor vehicles in lieu,
transierrt occupancy taxes, grants and interest associate<l with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized
as revenues of the cunent fiscal period to the extent nonnally collected within the
availabiiity period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available where cash is received by the govenrment.

Revenue recognition is subject to l,he measurable and, available cliteria for the
govemmental funds in the fund financial statements. Exchange transactions are
recognized as revenues in the period in which they are earned (i.e., the related
goods or ser-vices are provided). Locally imposed derived tax revenues are
recognized as revenues in tlie period in which tlie underlying exchange transaction
upon which they are based takes place. Imposed nonexcltange transactions are
recognized as revenues in the period for which they wele imposed. If the period of
use is not specif,red, they are recognized as revenues when an enforceable legal
clairn to the revenues arises or when they are received, whichever occurs first.
Governntent-ntandated and yoluntary nonexcltange lrûnsactiotxs are recognized as
revenues when all applicable eligibilify requirements have been met.

In the fuird financial statemellts, govemmental funds are presented using the
current f.nancial resources tneasurement focus. This means that only cunent
assets and cunent liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. The
repofied fund balance (net current assets) is considered to be a measure of
"available spendable resources." Govenrmental fund operating statements plesent
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and
other financing uses) in net cunent assets. Accoldingly, they are said to present a
summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

Non-cunent portions of long-tenn receivables due to governmental funds a¡e
leported on their balance sheets in spite of their spending rneasurement focus.
Special reporting treatments are used to indicate, however, that they should not be
considel'ed "available spendable resources," since rey do not represent net
current assets.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS

(Continued)

( l ) Reporting Ertity and Summary of Sisnifìcant Accountins Policies. (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accoulting and Measulement Focus. (Continued)

Revenues, expenditules, assets, and liabilities resulting fi.om nonexchange
transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASÞ
Statement No. 33 which requires that local governments defer grant levenue that
is not received within the. City's adopted policy of 60 days afier the fiscal year
ends to meet the "available" criteria of revenue recognition. hr the past, the
industry practice for glants was to recognize revenue in the fiscal year in which
the related expellse was incuned. Therefore recognition of govemmental fund
type revenue represeffed by non-cunent receivables a¡e deferred until they
become cunent receivables. Non-current portions of other long-term receivablei
are offset by fund balance reserve accounts.

Due to the nature of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition
for govenrmental fund types excludes amounts represénted by nonðurrerf
liabilities. Since they do not affect net cunent assets, súch long-tenú ar¡ounts are
not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fìndliabilities.

Amou¡ts expended to acquire capital assets ar.e recorded as expenditures in fhe
yeal tÌtat resources were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of
long-tenn debt are recorded as other financing sources rather than as a fund
liability. 

^üounts 
paid to reduce long-tenn indebtedness are reported as fund

expenditures.

When both restricted and unrestricled tesoulces are combilred in a fund, expenses
a¡e considered to be paid first from restricted resources, and then- fi.om
utuestricted resources.

PlopliclêllLaId Ei<luci arv Funds

The City's entetprise fund is a ploptietary fund. ln lhe fund financial statements,
the proprietary fund is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized when they are eamed and expenses aie recognized when the
related goods or services are delivered. in tñe fund firancial statelnents, the
proprietary fund is _presented using ihe econonùc resources nteasurement focus.
This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether cuffent or norrcüuent)
associated with their activiry are included on their balalrce sheets. proprietary
fund type 

. 
opelating statements present increases (revenues) and décreasei

(expenses) in total net assets.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reportins Entitv and Sunimarv of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

(b) Basis of Accountir.rg aud Measurement Focus. (contìnued)

Proprietarv and Fiduciarv Funds (continued)

Propdetary fund operating revenues, such as charges for seruices, result fron
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
tra sactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, aud investnent eamings
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Amounts paid to
acquire capital assets ale capitalized as assets in the enterprise fuud financial
statements, rather than repoúed as an expenditure. Proceeds of lougterm debt are
recorded as a liability in the enterprise fund financial statements, rathe¡ than as au
other financing source. Arnounts paid to reduce long-temr indebtedness of the
enterprise fund.are reported as a reduction ofthe related liability, rather than as an
expenditure. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do
not involve the recording of City reveuues and expenses.

(") FundClassifications

The City reports the following rnaj or funds:

Gereral Fund. This is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for all
activities of 1he general goverment, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

TE.A, 2\ITEA. The Intermodal Surface Transportation Euhancement Act
(ISTEA) and Transpodation Enhancement Act (TEA) Fund accounts for
transportâtion gr ant related receipts and expenditures.

Enterprise Fund. This fund is used to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where 1he intent
of the goveming body is that costs of ploviding sewage and wastewater treatment
services to the general public ou a continuing basis l¡e hnanced or recovered
prirnarily tlrrough user charges.

The City's fund structu¡e also includes the following fund type:

Agency Fund. This fund is used to account for the Cedros Avenue Assessment
District for which the City acts as an agent lor debt service activity.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reporting Entity and Sunmary of Sinrilicant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

(d) Expþ44!ie! qllDiÉþIqrrces between Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Net Assets

The "total fund balances" of the City's govenlnental funds $i4,230,426 differs
from "net assets" of govemmental activities 9522,681,658 reporled in the
statement of net assets. This difference primarily lesults from the long-ten'n
economic focus of the statement of net assets versus the current financial
resources focus of the govenrmental fund balance sheets.

Capital Related Iterns

When capital assets (propeúy, plant, equiprnent) that are to be used in
govetnmental activities are purchased or constructed, the cost of those assets are
repofted as expenditures in govemmental funds. However, the statement of net
assets includes those capital assets among tlle assets of the City as a whole.

Cost ofcapital assets $53 5,8 85,077
Accumulated depreciation (24.070,826)

Total capital assets, net $5fLå14251

Long-tem Debt Transactions

Long-tem liabilities applicable to the City's govenrmental activities are not due
and payable in the cutrent period and accordingly ale not reported as fund
liabilities, All liabilities (both cuuent and long{enn) are reported in the statement
ofnet assets.

Lease revenue bonds payable $2,915,000
Claims payable 1 66,813
Compensated absences 257,884

Total long-tem liabilities $1"139.69?
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NOTES TO BAS]C FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reporling Entitv and Summâry of Siqrificant Accountins Policies. (Contirued)

(d) ExolanationofDifferencesbetweenGovelrmental Funds
Balance Slieet and the Stater¡ent of Net Assets. (Continued)

Total Capital
Governmental Related

Funds Items

$ 15,53 5,379

19,396
438,918
10i,310
322,693
25t,t15

1.,247,919

Äccumul¡ted
DeÞreciation

(24,0'70,82¿)

(24.010.826\

Long-term
Debt

TransactionsAssets

Cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Tax
Interest

Due from other govenlents
Restricted cash with fiscal agent
I)ue fiom other furrds
Capital assets

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances/Net ,4ssets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest payable
Deposits payable
Deferred l'everìue
Due to other fur.rds

Long-term liabilities

- 535,88s,077

:_-

_$_1lJ_11J30 _l3l-885.0:t_

$ 1"368,898
97,556

819,998
t52,533

1,241,9t9

Total líabilities

Fund balances/net assets

Total liabilities and
and fund balances/nel

3,686,904

14,230,426 535,885,077

assets _$_fZ9.lZ$A_ _-531-885-01_Z_

(24,070,826) (2,91s,000)

_J24.91_9,82tr ________________



Interest
Pavable

n,28;

11,284

(1r,284)

166,813

(166,8i 3)

251,884

(2s7,884) (12,038)

(1,241 ,919)

11 )a1 o1a\

1,368,898
91,ss6
11,284

819,998
t64,571

I ? ?A ¡(q7

s,802,004

522,68r,6s8

-528433ß52_

Claims
Pavable

Compensated Certain
Absences Revenue

-.

:_

Reclassifications
and

Eliminations

(1,247,só)

Statement of
Net Assets

t5,535,379

1q ?q6

438,918
101,310
322,693
25r,71s

s3 s,8 85,077
(24,070,826)

írR 4R1 66)________________ __x24U)9I

12,038

12,038
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Repoding Entitv and Sumrnalv of Siqnificant Accounting Policies. (Confinued)

(d)

Accrued Interest

Accrued liabilities in the statement ofnet assets differ s from the arnount reported
in governmerfal furids due to accmed interest on outstanding debt payable (see

Note 6).

Accrued interest added $ 1l.28-4

Cerlain Revenue

Business License renewals are billed on January 1, and are due on January 31, for
the license period beginning on January 1. Since the amount collected pertains to-

a license period extending six months into the following fiscal year', the portion of
busìness licenses collected peÍaining to the next fiscal year is recorded as

deferred rer)enLte on the Statement of Net Assets. Such defened revenues are

earned in the subsequent fiscal year.

Business license deferred revenue $f2-83q

Reclassifi cations and Eliminations

Interfund balances must generally be eliminated in the govermneut-wide
statemonts, except for net residual amounts due between govetnmental activities.
Amounts involving fiduciary funds should be reporled as external transactions.
Any allocations tnust reduce the expenses of the function from which the
expenses are being allocated, so that expenses are repofted ouly once - ilr the
function in which they are allocated.
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(Continued)

(1) Reppr1iugEnli1y ard Sumrnq4¿ of Sienihcant Accountine Policies. (Continued)

(e) Exolanation of Differences between Govemnental Fund Operating Statements
and the Statcment of Activities

The'îet change in fund balances" for govemmental funds $(1,207,503) differs
flom the "change in net assets" for govemmental activities $(18,813) reported in
the statement of activities. The differences arise primarily from the long-term
ecouomic focus of the statement of activities versus the current financial resources
focus of the govemmental funds. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.

Cap{alRql4eú llem!

When capital assets that are to be used ir govemmental activities are purchased or
constructed, the resources expended for those assets afe repoúed as expenditures
in govemmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is ailocated over theìr' estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of financial resources
expended, whereas net assets decreased by 1he amount of depreciation expense
charged for the year.

Capital additions, net of disposals
Depreciation expenses, net of disposals

Difference

93,923,659
(2.352.801)

$1,5?0.852
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reoortins Entitv and Summary of Sisnifioant Accountinq Policies^ (Continued)

Explanation of Differences between Govemmental Fund
Operatinq Statements and the Statement of Activities. (Contirued)

(e)

Reveuues:
Taxes and assessments
Intergoven.rmental
Licenses and permits
Charges for serwices
Fines and fotfeitures
Investment income
Uses of money and propeny
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
CulTent:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Cornmunity development
Community serwices

Capital outlay
Debt sewice:

Principal retirement
Intelest

Total expenses

Othcr financing soulces (uses):

Transfers in
liansfel s out

Total other financing soulces (uses)

Net change in fund balances/net assets

Fund balances/net assets

beginning of year, as r'estated

Fund balances/net assets, end of year

Total Capital
Governmental Related Accumulated

EuId! Items Depreciation

Long-term
Debt

Transactions

g 9,268,7s2
3,901,446

305,807
421,033
336,224
228,238
13 0,602
422,028

15,014,130

!ì 2,602,447 (56,880) 97,9ts
s,9r3,193 (380,1s9) 166,108
2,157,684 604,362 r,963,561
792,434 10,606 1.,451.

236,705 - 177,042
4,1s4,864 (4,101,588) (s3,276)

)14 ô) \
139,68 i

(224,02s)

16,221,633 (3,923,6s9) 2,3s2,80'7 (224,02s)

|,248,917
(1,248,9r7)

(1,207,503) 'ì qt I Á5q

15,437.929 53 1.961 ,41 8

s14,230,426 s35,885,077

(2,3s2,807) 224,02s

(21,718,019) (3,139,02s)

_g!,07!_,82q _g¿J-:{!q
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Statement of
Activities

Certain
Revenue

Accrued
Interest

Claims Compensated
Payable Absences

Reclassifications
and

Elirninations

(12s,360)

(470,;s7)
) )')^

9,268,7 52
3,431,r89

308,02'1
295,673
336,224
228,238
13 0,602
422,028

(468,037) (125,360) r4,420,-t33

155,319 (1s,611) (12s,360) 2,6s1,830
- 5,699,742

4,725,613
- 804,491
- 413,7 47

( 1,55 8) 138,123

(1,5s8) l5s,3l9 (1s,611) _ (12s,3ó0) 14,43s,546

- (1,248,e17)
1,248,917

1,558 (1ss,319) 15,611

(12,842\ (11.494t t273.49s1

(11,284) (166,813) (2s7,884)

(468,037)

455,999

----9298)

("f ,Ð

522,700,471

522,681,6s8



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

( i ) Reporling Entity and SumrnarJ of Sienificant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

(e)

Long-tem Debt Transactious

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
culrent financial resources aud thelefore a.re llot repoÍed as expenditures in
govemmental funds.

$(1s,611)
155,319

Net change in compensated absences
Net change in claims payable

Repaynent of debt service is reporled as an expelrditure in goverrunental funds
and, thus, has the effect of reducìng fuud balance because cutrent financial
resources have been used. For the City as a whole, however, the principal
pa)îlerts reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not result in
an expense in the statement of activitìes.

Lease levenue bonds principle paymeut tnade 9224ß25

Accrued Interest

Beginning fund balance in the statement of activities has been lestated to reflect
the retroactive recording ofaccrued interest on outstanding debt.

Accrued interest deducted $L558

Celtain Revenue

Busincss License reuewals are billed onJauuary 1, and are due on January 31, for
the license period begimring on January 1. Since the amount collected pefiains 10

a license period extending six monlhs into the followiug fiscal year, the portion of
business licenses collected peúaining to the next I'rscal year is recorded as

deferred revenue ot7 tlÌe Statement of Net Assets. Sucli defened revenues are
ea¡ned in the subsequent fiscal year.

Net change ir.r busiuess license defened reveÌLue deducted $2Æ
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Contìnued)

(1) Repoltins Entitv and Surnmarv of Sisnificant Accounling Policies. (Continued)

(e)

(Ð

Revenue collected this fiscal year was repoÍed as defened revenue in the
govemmenfal funds at the end oflast fiscal year and defened revenue
is accordingly reduced fhis year by that anlount.

Net change in othel defeued revenue Sß1925n

Reclassifìcation and Eliminations

hrterfund balances must generally be elininated in the govemmer.rt-wide financial
statements, except for net residual amounts due between govemrnental activities.
Anounts involving fiducìary funds should be reporled as extemal transactions.
Any allocations must reduce the expenses of the function from whjch the
expenses are being allocated, so that expenses are lepofied only once - in the
function in which they are allocated.

Cash and Lrvestments

Investments are reported it the accompanying balance sheet at fair value. These
investrnents ale not transferable and they have ten¡s that are not affected by
changes in market interest lates.

Clranges in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized a,s inyesÍnent
inconte rcported for that fiscal year. Investntent inconte reports interest earnings,
changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidatión,
maturity, or sale of investmer,ts. The City's practice is to hold iuvestménts until
maturity.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investmeffs of all funds except for
fi;nds r:equired to be held by the outside fiscal agent under provisions of the loan
payable agreemeDt. Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is
allocated quarlerly to the funds based on average mouthly cash and inveshnent
balances.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Reportine Entity and Su

(g) Staternent of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows the City considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of tluee months o¡ less when purchased to be cash
equivaletfs. ln addition, cash invested in the City's cash tnanagement pool is
considered to be cash equivalenls. At June 30, 2005, cash and cash equivalettts
reporled in the Sanitation Ente¡prise Fund of$5,963,334 consisted ofthe Califonia
lncal Agency Investment Fund $5,956,303; cash and investments with fiscal agent
$447; and pooled deposits in the City's cash management pool $20,000.

(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets (including additions to infrastructure) are recorded at cost where
historical records are available and at an estimated original cost where no
historical records exist. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair
market value at the date ofthe contribution. Generaliy, capital asset purchases in
excess of $1,000 (including infiastructure) zre capitalized if theyhave an expected
useful life ofone year or trore.

Capital assets include additions to public dornail (infrastructure) general capital
assets consisting of cefiain improvetlents including roads and streets, curbs,
gutters and sidewalks, street lights, signs and signals, park equipment and storm
drains.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
using the straightJìne method in the govenxnent - wide financial statements and
in the fund financial statements ofthe enterprise fuird. Depreciation is charged as

an expense against operations and accuntulated depreciation is reporled on the
respective balance sheet. The range of lives used fol depreciation purposes for
each capital asset class are as follows:

Buildings and impr-overnents
Equipment
Infrastructure - Sewer lines
lnfrastructure - Other

20-50 yeals
3-25 years

40-50 years
20-60 years
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCiAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(1) Repq¡liugEulLi4¡ aud Surularv of Sienificant Accountine Policies. (Continued)

(i) ProÞertly Taxes

Propefty taxes attach as an enforceable lien on properly as of January 1. Taxes are
levied on.Tuly 1 and are payable in two instalhnents on Decembe¡ 10 and April 10.
The County bills and collects the property taxes and remits them to the City in
instalhnents duriug the year. City properly tâ.\ revenues ale recognized when levied
to the extellt that they result in curent receivables in accordance with GASB Code
Section P70.

The County is pennitted by State Law (Proposition 13) to levy taxes at 1% of full
market value (at time of purchase) and can iucrease the property tax rate no nìore
than two percent per year. The City receives a share of this basic levy.

0) Amortization Expense in Entemrise Fund

Debt issuance costs totaling $828,999 are being arnortized in the Sa¡ritation fund
over the term of the debt (through the year 2020). Additionally, 9437,782 of
premium paid on investrnent in joint venture is being arnorlized over the estimated
life of the inveslment (tluough the year 2030).

(k) CompqÞAlq{LAbsences

The City accounts for compensated absences in accordance with GASB Stâtement
No. 16. In gover-mnental funds, compensated absences are recorded as expendìtures
in the year paid, as it is the City's policy to liquidate any unpaid vacation or sick
leave at June 30 from future resources rather than cunently available expendable
resources. Accordingly, the eúire unpaid liability for the governrnental funds is
recorded in the govenrment-wide frnancial statements as these amounts will be
liquidated from future ¡esources.

(2) Cash and lnvestments

Cash aud investments at June 30, 2005 are reported as follows in the lhnancìal statemellts

Statemelìt of Net Assets:
Cash and investrnents
Restricted cash and investrnents with fiscal agent

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets:
Cash and iuvestments

$21,498,266
1,091,078

12.706

$22.$ZA5e
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL S'IATEMENTS

(Continued)

Cash and hrvestrnents. (Continued)

Cash and investments at June 30, 2005 consisted ofthe follorving:

Imprest cash on hand
Demand deposits held by City
Lrvestrnents held by City:

Local Agency lnvestment Fund
Investments held by fiscal agent:

Money market fund
Federal Agency Securities

Total cash and investments

s 612
366,324

21,143,076

5,600
1,086,378

$22é02-050

lnvestr¡ents Authorized bv the Califomia Govemment Code and the Citv's Investment
Polic),

The table below identifies the ínvestment types that are authorized for the City by the
Califomia Govemment Code and the City's investment policy. Tlie table also identifies
cerlain provisions of the Califomia Govemment Code (or the City's investment policy, if
more restrictive) that addless interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk, The City
has no investments held by bond trustee.

Investment Types
Authorized bly State Law

Local AgencyBonds Yes
U.S. Treasury Bills Yes
U.S. Treasury Notes Yes

U.S. Agency Securities Yes

Banker's Acceptances Yes

Commercial Paper Yes

Negotiable Cerlificates of Deposit No
Repurchase Agleerlents No
Passbook savings demand deposits Yes

Reverse Repurchase Agteements No
Medium-Tenn Notes No
Mutual funds No
l\4oney Martet Mutual Funds No
I-ocal Agency Lrvestlrent Fund (LAIF) Yes

Authorized
By Investment i'Maximurn

Policy Maturitv

*Maximum *Maximum
Percentage Investment
Of Portfolio in One Issuer

None None
60% None
40% None
20o/. Noue
I0% None
t0% r0%
I0% None
None None
None None

20% ofbase value None
30% None
Noue Noue
None None

$40,000,000 None

5 years
None

5 years
5 years

180 days

180 days

5 yeals

7 year

5 years

92 days

5 years

5 years

5 years

5 yeals
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(Continued)

(2) Cash and lnvestmelts. (Continued)

lnvestments Authorized bv the California Govemrnent Code and the Citv's Livestment
Policv (continued)

+ Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, rvhichever is more restrictive.

hrvestments Authorized bv Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by fiscal agent are goveured by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the Califomia Govenrment Code or the
City's investrnent policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are
authorized for investments held by fiscal agent. The table also identifies certain
provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk and concerfratiou of
credit risk.

Authorized Maximun
Investment Tlpe Maturitv

U,S. Treasury Obligations None
IJ. S, Agency Securities None
Banker's Acceptances 360 days
Commercial Paper 270 days
Money Market Mutual Funds N/.,\
Investment Contrâcts None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A
State or Municipal Obligations None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Maximum
Perccntage
Allowed

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Maximum
Investment

in One Issuer

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market ìnterest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investrrent. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the selsitivity of its fair value to chauges in r¡arket interest tates, One of the ways
that the City manages its exposure to intelest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
shorter tenn and longer term investments and by timing cash flows frorl matunties so
that a porlion of the portfolio is maturing or conling close to maturity evenly over time as
necessaly to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operatious.
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(Contiuued)

(2) Cash and Investments. (Continued)

Disclosures Relatins to Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Infonnation about the sensitivity of tlle fair values of the City's to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the followìng table that sl]ows the distribution of the City's
investments by maturity (including investments with fiscal agent):

Rernainins Maturitlr' (in Years)

lnvestment T\,pe

Held by City:
LAIF

Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money market funds
Federal agency

Tota'l

1 Year
Or less

s 21,143,076 2r,r43,076

5,600 5,600
1.086.378 1.086,378

S 22.235.054 )) 11\ ¡\A

Ito2
Years

2lo3
Years

3to5
Yea¡s

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, c¡edit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulñll its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assígrrment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical ratilg organization. Presented below is the rninìrnum
rating required by (where applicable) tlie Califomia Govemment Code, the City's
investment policy, or debt agreements, ald the actual rating as of year end for each
investmerìt tlpe.

Minimum
Legal
Rating

N/A

N/A
N/A

A,,,AJ{

Ratinqs as of Year End
Not

AA A RatedIlvestl¡ent Tvpg
Held by City:
LAIF

Held by fiscal agent:
Money market funds
Federal agency

Total

s21,t43,0',76

5,600
1.086.378

q t) tì5 ô5¿

21,143,076

s,600
1.086.378

)) )14 ã\4
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(Continued)

(2) Cash and Investnents. (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contaius no limitations on the amount that can be
invested in auy one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Govemment Code. The
city had no investments in any ole issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and extemal investment pools) tllat lepresent 50lo or more of total City investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a goveürment will not be able to recover its deposits or will not bê
able to recover collateral secudties that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for Ìnvestn,Lents is the risk that, in the event of the failur-e of the
countelpafiy (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be abie to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another pat'ty. The Califomia Govenment Code and the City's investment policy do not
contair legal or policy requiremeuts that would limit the exposule to custodlal credit ¡isk
for deposits or investmellts, other than the following provision for deposits: The
Califomia Government Code requires that a financial institutiôn secure deposits made by
state or local govemmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool
held by a depository regulated under stâte law (unless so waived by the govemméntal
unit). The market value ofthe pledged securities in the collateral pool must èqual at least
ll0% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. Califomia law ãlso allows
financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging flrst trust deed morlgage notes
having a value of 150% ofthe secured public deposits. As ofJune 30,2005, nonè of the
City's deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits
were held in uncollate¡alized accouús. For investments identified herein as held bv fiscal
agent, the f,rscal agent selects the investment under the terms of the applicabíe trust
agreement, acquires the investment, and liolds 1he investment on belialf of the reporting
govenxneïìt.

Inveslment in State Investment Pool

The Entity is a voluntary paÍicipant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by 1he Califonia Govemlent Code under the oversiglit of the Treasurer of the
State of Califomia. The fair value of the Eutity's investment in this pool is reported in the
acconrpanying hnancial statements at amounts based upon the Entity's pro-rata share of
1he fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relatíon to the anroúized
cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an anortized cost basis.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Interfund balances at June 30. 2005 corxisted of the followins:

o,i" non'''
TEA2I1 Norunajor
TEA Funds Total

Due To:
General Fund $5qru9 650165 1247.949

The Interfuud Balarces arise fi'om the advance payment by the City's General Fund for
projects, which are reitnbursable tluough various Federal and State Grant Programs. In
accordance with the requirelrents of the Grant Programs, the above expenditures have
been incurred and reimbursetnent is expected to be received within the next fiscal year.

(4) InterfundTransfers

I¡terfund transfers at June 30, 2005 consisted of the following:

Transfers In:
General Nonmajor
Fund Funds Total

Transfers Out:
General Fund - I ,246 ,7 22 | ,246 ,7 22
Nonmajor Funds $2.195 ________________: 2.195

rotal $2J_95 1.246J22 l2ÆpJl

The most significant interfund transfer was from the General fund to the Debt Service
Fund in order to provide available funds fo¡ interest and principal paynents on the City's
long-tenn debt. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, there were no significant
interfuird tra¡sfers that were not expected, budgeted for, unusual nor of a non-routine
ltatul'e.
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(Continued)

There wele no significant construction commitments at June 30, 2005

(6) Long-termLiabilities

Long-tenn liability activity for the year ended.Tune 30, 2005 was as follows

Governmelttal Activities :

Lease revenue bonds:
ABAG

Capital lease payable:
Distillery Real Estate

Other liabilities:
Cornpensated abseuces

Clair.ns payable
Deposits payable

Total other liabilities

Total governmental
actiyities

Business-type Activities :

Loaus payable:
Sanitatior - 2003

Other Ìiabilitìes:
Compensated absences

Claims payabie

Total other liabilitics

Total business-R?e
activities

'l'otâl

Begiuning
Balance Additions Deletions

$3.100.000

Anlounts
Ending Due withir
Balance One Year

185.000 2.915.000 190.000

257,884 2t,490
166,813 9,106
819.998 459.199

t.244.695 489.795

4.159.695 679.795

9.025.000 460.000

| 5,566 |,297
53.025

68.591 1.297

9.093.591 461.297

r]_2ta?8ó 1Jg,0e2

39.02s __- 3 j,o¿s

9.475.000

273,495 172,903 188,514
1t,494 t55,3 t9

522.7 26 586.6'12 289.400

807.? r5 914.894 4',17.914

3.946.140 914.894 701.939

14.808 '7,47 6 6,'t18
53.025

- 
jQJSI 6.71814.8 08

e.489.808 , _45óJ!8

$-ú-43éJ48 9_'7-5395 l-153_6sf
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACI{

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Contiuued)

(6) Lone{enlLiabililies,(Coltinued)

Govenrnrenlal Activities:

Lease Revenue Bonds:

On Jar.ruary I0, 2002, the City issued $3,465,000 of Series 2002
ABAG Lease Revenue Bonds to advance refuird $2,185,000 of the
outstanding Cerlificafes of Participation, Series 1992, and
$1,125,000 of the outstanding Cerlificates of Participation, Series
1995, establish a reserve account for the bonds, and to pay the cost
of issuing the bonds. g3,504,499 of the 2002 series proceeds were
used to purchase U.S. Govemment securities to adva¡ce refund the
1992 and 1995 series. Those securities were placed in an ir¡evocable
trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
palments on the 1992 and 1995 series. As a result, fhe 1992 a:nd

1995 series certificates of participation are considered to be defeased
and tlie liability for the 1992 u'td, 1995 sedes has been removed front
the Govemment-wide Statemeft of Net Assets. The 2002 bonds
have annual irterest ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% and annual
principal installments ranging frorn $95,000 to $235,000 througlt
Decernbe:: 1,2023.

Lease Payable:

ln July 1994, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to
finance the acquisifion ofland valued at its gross amount of$585,834.
The lease in the amount of $585,834 qualifies as a capital lease and
has been recorded at the present value of the future minìmum lease
paprents at the date of the inception of the lease. The lease calls fo¡
semi-annual pal,ments of $40,293 including interest at 6.5% beginning
July 15, 1994 and ending July 15,2004.

Balance
June 30.2005

s2,915,000
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(Continued)

(6) Lone-telmLiabilities.(Continued)

The lease purchase agreement was paid in fulI this fiscal year a:id
there are no further lease pal,rnents due.

Co mp-ç494!çd 4þ!çnqçs

The City's policies relating to colnpensated absences are described
in Note 1. The following liability at June 30, 2005 is expected to
be paid in future years fi'om futur e resources. Compensated
absences has been typically liquidated from the General Fund.

Clairns Pavable

The City accounts for material claims and judgments in accordance
with GASB Code Section C50. When it is probable that a claim
liability has been incurred at year end, and the ar¡ount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated, the City records the estirnated loss, net of
any insurance coverage under its self insurance program (See Note
e).

Under the Cíty's self-insurance progl a.rn, deposits to the San Diego
Pooled Insurance Authority (SANDPIPA) are recorded as insurance
expenditures when paid. Refunds of deposits fror¡ SANDPIPA,
based on favorable claims experience in prior years, are lecolded as
reductions ofinsurance expense when received (see Note 9). Clainis
payable has been typìcally liquidated Íìom the General Fund.

Depesrlq l4vable

Deposits payabìe has been typically liquidated fiom the Genelal Fund.

Total loug-terrn liabilities - govenuental activities

257,884

166,813

819.998

$4Jæ
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(Contirrued)

(6) Lone-telrrrLiabilities,(Continued)

Business-Type Activities:

Loan Payable - San Eliio Joint Powers Authodty:

Ori April 16,2003 the City of Solana Beach and tlie San Elijo Joint
Powers Author-ity (JPA) anerided a loan agreement whereby the JPA
loaned $9,905,000 to the City to refuird the 1993 Refunding Revenue
Bonds. The 1993 Bonds were oúginally issued to refinarce the cost
of acquiring and consÍucting ceflain improvements to the San Elijo
Wastewater Treatment Facilities owned by the JPA. Funding for the
loan was provided tlrough the issuance of Revenue Bonds by the
JPA in the amount of$18,640,000. $10,282,918 of the 2003 Series
proceeds were used to purchase U.S. Governlent Securities to
advance refund the 7993 Series. As a result, the 1993 Series is
considered defeased and the liability has been removed ffom the
Govemr¡enfwide Statement of Net Assets.

The amended loan matures on March I, 2020. Principal paynents
ranging ffom $430,000 to $810,000 are due armually on March 1.

Interest pa),rnents al'e due semi-annually on September and March 1.

Comoensated Absences

The City's policies relating to compensated absences are described
in Note 1. The lollowing liability at June 30, 2005 is expected to be
paid lron future years from future resources.

Claims Pa)¡al¡le

The City accounts for rnaterial claims and judgmerfs in accordance
with GASB Code Section C50. When it is probable that a clairn
liability has been incuued at year end, and the amount ofthe loss can
be reasonably estimated, the City records the estimated loss, net ofany
insurance coverage undel its selfinsurance prograni (See Note 9).

Under the City's selÊinsurance progÌam, deposits to tìre San Diego
Pooled Lrsurance Authority (SANDPIPA) are recorded as insurance
expenditures when paid. Refuirds of deposits flom SANDPIPA, based
on favorable claims experience in pr'ìor years. are recorded as
reductions ofinsurance expense wheu received (see Note 9).

Total long-tenn liabilities - business-t¡pe activities

Balance
June 30. 2005

$9,025,000

15,566

51 nr5
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NOTES TO BASiC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(6) Longten¡Liabilities.(Continuedl

Aruual Amortization Requirements of Lone-TenÌ Liabilities

The annual requiremetts to amoftize loan revenue bolds payable as ofJune 30, 2005 are
as follows:

Governmental Activities :

Lease Revenue Bonds Payable

Year Ending June 30

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
201t-20t5
2016-2020
2021-2024

Business-type Activities:
Sanitation Loan Payable:

Year Ending June 30

Principal

$ 190,000
200,000
20s,000
220,000
225,000
640,000
62s,000
610.000

$2-9ll*000

Princip¿l

$ 460,000
410,000
485,000
s00,000
515,000

2,915,000
3.680.000

s9.02s.000

Interest

131,606
t23,556
114,181
r04,656
95,756

37 r,713
233,147

63.000

r.237.615

Total

321,606
323,556
319,181
324,656
320,756

1,01t,713
858,t47
673.000

4t52-6)"5

Total

848,900
841,400
850,650
85 1,100
848,600

¿ t5n 55n
4.250.000

12.741.200

2006
2007
2008
2009
z0t0
2011-2015
20r6-2020

Interest

388,900
371,400
36s,650
351,100
333,600

1,33s,s50
570.000

3-722.200



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BAS1C FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I'S

(Continued)

(7) Defìned Benefit Pension Plan (PERS)

The City of Solana Beach contributes to the Califomia Public Erlployees Retirement
System (PERS), an agent rnultiple-employer public employee dehned benefit peusion
pian. PERS provides rètirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to plau members
ã¡d beneficiãries. PERS acts as a common investment and adtriuistrative agent for
palticipating public entities within the State of Calífomia. Copies of PERS' anuual
financial report may be obtained from its executive office at 400 "P" Street, Sacramento,
Califomia 95814.

Parlicipants are required to contribute 7% (9% for safety and marine-enployees) of their'
annual covered sala4'. The City rnakes the contributions required of City employees ou
their behalf and for their account. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are

established by state statute and town contract with employee bargaining groups.

Unde¡ GASB 27, an employer repoÍs an annual pension cost (APC) equal to the aruual
required contribution (ARC) plus an adjustment for the curnulative difference between
thé AIC and the employe¡'s actual plan contributions for the year. Tl.re cumulative
diflerence is called the net peusion obligation (NPO). The ARC for the period July 1,

2004 to June 30,2005 has been determíned by an actuarial valuation of the pian as of
June 30, 2002- The conttibution rate indicated for the period is 10.302% of payroll for
tlre miscellaneous plan, 22.7 53% of payroll for the safety plan ard 21.5630/o for Ihe
marine plan. In ordel to calculate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in financial
statemeirts prepared as of June 30, 2005, this contribution rate would be m-ultiplied by the
payroli of òovèred ernployees that was actually paid during the period July 1, 2003 to
June 30, 2004.

A sumrnary of principle assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown
below.
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(Continued)

(7) Defined Bene{it Pension Plan (PERS). (çontinued)

Miscellaneous _S¡fely¡¡d !{¡¡r¡s

Ju¡e 30,2002
Entry age acfua) ial cost metlìod
Leveì percent of payroll

17 Years as oftbe valuâtion date

for Safety; 22 years for Marine
3 Year smoothed market

8.25% (net of adminishative expenscs)

4.2'1yõ to I L59o/o depending on age,

selvice, and type ofelÙplo]Ìncnt
3.50%

3.',|5%

A merit scâlo valying by dulation of
gmplo]aìlent coìrpÌed with an assumed

annual inflation growth of3,50% and

ân a¡nuâl production growth of 0.25%.

Valuation Date:

Actua¡ial Cost Method:
Alnortizafion Method:

Avorage ReDraining Periodl

Asset Valuation Methodl

Actua¡ial Assumptions:

IDvestment Rate of Retum

Projected Salary Increases

I¡flation
Payloll Growth

lndividual Salary G'owth

June 30,2002
Ëntry age actuarìâl cost nìethod
Level percent of payroll
22 Years as ofthe valuation date

3 Year smoothed nrarket

8.25% (net of admilristrative expenses)

3.'75% to 14.20% depending on age,

service, and t¡4re ofcntploynent
330%
3.'7s%

A merit scale valying by duration of
empJo¡.rnent coupled with an âssìrmed

arìnuâl jnflation growth of 3.50% and

an annual production growth of0.25%.

Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan's
date of entry into CaIPERS. Subsequent plan amendmerts are amortized as a level
percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the
operation of the plan are amortized over a rolling period, which results in an amoltization
of 10% of unamortized gains and losses each year. If the plan's acc¡red liability exceeds
tl.re actuarial value of plan assets, then the amortizatiorr period may not be lower than the
palment calculated over a 30 year amortization period.

Fo¡ both the rniscellaneous and marine plan, the unfunded actuarial liability is amorlized
over a period ending June 30,2022. For the safety plan, the City was overfunded for the
year ended.Iùne 30,2031. Arnorlization periods are not determined for over.funded plans.

The Schedule of Fundrng Progress below shows the recent history of the actuarial value
of assets, acluadal accrued liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the
unfunded accrued liability to payroll.



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASiC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(7) Defined Belefit Pension Plan (PERS). (Continued)

Tluee-Year Trend Information For PERS ($ Ar¡ount In Thousands)

Fiscal A¡nual Pension Percentage of
Year Cost (APC) APC Contributed

6/30/02 Misc.
6130/02Fire
6130102Maine

6/30/03 Misc.
6/30/03 Fire
6130/03Manne

6/30l04Misc.
6/30/04 Fire
6/30104}l4¿rj¡e

Net Pension
Oblieation

___L

100%
100%
100%

$128
174
I9

$321

$179
19s

19

$jgl

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

$211
217

38

$526



CITY OI.- SOLANA BEACI{

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STAT'EMENTS

(Continued)

(7) Defined Benelit Pension Plan (PERS). (Continued)

Schedule OfFundins Progress For PERS (g AÌnount In Thousands)
(Most Recent lnfomation Available)

Actuarial Unñ¡nded
Accrued (Excess

Actuadal Liability Assets)
Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Coveled
Assets Enûy Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
lÐ (Ð (B-Al (A/Bl (Ç)

s 3,749
7,912
1.23t

$_12.89-2

$ 3,645
7 ,698
1.164

$12ff7

$ 3,897
8,009
1.183

uÀ08-9

$ 2,990
11'l)
1.049

cu41

$ 3,538
8,727
1.t32

$sJel

$ 4,528
9,516
1.372

$15.41é

s (759)
(s40)
(r82)

$lL4_&r)

$ (l 07)
1,029

(32)

$ 890

$ 631

I,507
189

s232L

125/%
107 .3%
1t'/3%

1-12ê%,

103.0%
88.2%

102.8%

9-3-4%

86.1%
84.2%
86.2%

84,

$1,60s
1,17 4

t94

$zzJ)

$ 1,844

1,216

205

$å2_65

$1,954
1,412

198

$3-5é4

UAAL as

a o/o oî
Covered
Payroll

lß-Avcl

(47,3%)
(46.0%)
(e3.6%)

ee.M

(5.8%)
84.6%

(ts.6%)

U.3Yi

32.3o/o

106.1%
95.4%

þé,]Is

Actualial
Valuation

Date

6l30t0t:
Misc.
Þ'ire

Mariue

Totâl

6t30/02:
Misc.
Fire
Marire

1'otâl

6/3 0/00:
Misc.
Fi¡e
Marine

Total
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(Continued)

(8) hrvestrnent in Joint Venture

On June 17, 1987, tlie Cardiff Sanitation District and the City of Solara Beach established
the Sar-r Elijo Joir.rt Powers Authority (SEJPA), a separate legal entity, whose function is to
manâge, operate, maintain and expald a plant for the tl'eatrnent and disposal of sewage ol
wastewater and to detemrine the joint aud separate obligations of the members conceming
the transmission, treatment, disposal and reclalnation of sewage and wâstewater within the
respective selvice tenitories. The SEJPA's goveming board consists of two members from
eaCh entity. The City of Solana Beach's investment in the SEJPA has been recorded using
the equity method of accourfing and is shown as an inveshlent in joint venture in tlie City's
financìal statements. Summarized audited infonnation of the SEJPA for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Non-operating revenues (net of expenses)
Capital grants

Net change in net assets

Total assets

'Iotal liabílities

Funcl equily:
Net assets - total fund equity

$ 4,902,848
(s,rs3,324)
(1s9,868)

s52.745

L1_42d01

$@Liél!
$30.898.s75

$3s,111,943

Prior to the fomation of tlie San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA), the Caldiff
Sanitation Distrìct and the City of Solala Beach operated the Sal Elijo water pollution
control facility under an agreement whereby operating costs were shared based on usage and
capital expansions were funded 56% by Cardiff and 44%oby Solma Beach. Upon lormation
of the SEJPA in June 1987 the mernbers continued flinding SEJPA activities in this mamrer
until May 1989, when the equity interests in the joint ventlre were levised to 50% Cardiff
añ,50o/o Solana Beach. To effect the change in equity iûterests, the City ofSolana Beach
agreed to pay Cardiff Sanitation Distdct $750,680, which included a premium on the value
of tlre equity interest in the amorurt of $437 ,182. This prerrium is being amorlized ovel the
estimated useful life of the facility or fbfiy year:s.
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(Continued)

f5) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 was as follows:

Governmental Activiti es :

Description

Non-depreciable:
Land (1)
Infrastructure construction
in progress

Depreciable:
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
lnfrastrucfure

Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
lnfrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, net

21.718.019 2.406.083

$510.243.399 6.ss9.098

53.276 24.070.826

4.988.246 5t1.814.2s1

Restated
Beginning
Balance

s473,451,238

2,990,429

4,869,329
940,722

1,207,949
r,045,941

41.455.811

531.961.418

for:
1,269,I49

443,glg
964,147
736,225

18.304.520

Additions Deletions

4,988,246

53,276

s.04r522

53,276

Ending
Balance

3,395,817

565,r20
4,25I,276

141,438
347,330
264.200

8.965.181

109,r43
172,681
713,812
76,975

r.933"412

473,451,239

1,399,000

5,434,449
5,191,999
l,296,lII
1,393,271

47.720.011

s3s.885.077

1,378,292
616,659

1,024,693
813,200

20.237.992

(1) The City valued and recorded land rights-of-way in the amount of $469,866,852 during
fiscal year 2005 which was previously excluded from capital assets. GASB Statement
No. 34 allows four years after the year of original implementation to have a complete
inventory of infrastructure related capital assets. The City implemented GASB j+ in
fiscal year 2001.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(l) Capital Assets. (Continued)

Business-type Activities :

Description

Non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress

Depreeiable:
Building and improvements
Equipment

Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and improvements(2)
Equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Restated
Beginning

Balance

$ 1 1,845
174,759

6,492,303
s06.317

7.185.224

2,574,978
502.062

3.077.040

s4. l 08.1 84

Additions Deletions

313,513

313.513

161,372
r.943

163.315

1 s0.1 98

Ending
Balance

I 1,845
488,272

6,492,303
506.3t7

7.498^737

2,736,350
s04.005

3.240.355

425ß3¡2

$23,561 in(2) The beginning balance for accumulated
additional depreciation for improvements.

Depreciation expense was charged in the
Activities:

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Community Services
Sanitation

Total

depreciation was restated by

following functions

Governmental
Activities

$ 97,915
166,108

1,963,567
1,451

177,042

in the Statement

Business-Type
Activities

-

163.315

1é3J15

of
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(8) I¡vestment in Joint Venture. (Continued)

A summary of the changes in the City's investment in the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority
for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

June 30, 2004 Balance
Add: Unam oftized premium

FYE June 30,2005 Activity:
lncrease (decrease) in investment in joint venture
Less: Amortization of premium

Total lnvestment at June 30, 2005

sr7,579,787
271.783

17,85I,570

(23,814)
(10.e4s)

s17.816.8r 1

At June 30, 2005 the SEJPA had $16,925,000 2003 Refunding Revenue Bonds outstanding
(See Note 6). The financial statements of the SEJPA can be obtained from the Solana
Beach Finance Department located at Solana Beach City Hall, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana
Beach, Califomia 9207 5.

(9) Solana Beach Sanitation Enterprise Fund Debt Service Coverage

In compliance with bond issuance covenants, specifically Appendix F Section 4(c) of the
$18,640,000 Sqn Elijo Joint Powers Authority, 2003 Refunding Revenue Bonds, the City
is including this table showing debt service coverage for the fiscal year of at least 1.1Ô
times (i) the loan installments coming due and payable during the fiscal year, (ii) all
payrnents required with respect to parity debt, and (iii) amount required to replenish the
Reserve Fund as required by the indenture.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(9) Solana Beach Sanitation Enterprise Fund Debt Service Coveraee. (Continued)

Revenues:
Operating revenues - service charges and corurection fees
Other operating
Non-operating revenues

Gross revenues

Less : Operations, non-operations and maintenance expenses

Net income

Add back:
lnterest expense (accrual method of accounting)
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Amortization of investment in JPA

Net revenues available for debt service

Debt service:
2003 Revenue bonds:

lnterest charges
Principal repayment

Total debt service

Coverage by net revenues available for debt service

Fiscal Year 2004-05

$3,516,154
r4,273

r64.044

3,694,471

2"798.884

895,587

370,925
163,315

49,765
r0.945

r,489,537

370,925
4s0.000

820,925

1 .81

(10) Risk Management

The City is a member of the San Diego Pooled lnsurance Program Authority (SANDPIPA),
a consortium of twelve goverlimental entities in San Diego County who have joined
together to achieve savings on insurance premiums through volume purchasing and risk
management consulting. Each member pays for its proportionate share of its individually
contracted insurance coverage and consulting services.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10) RiskManaeernent. (-Continued.)

l. General Liability: The City selÊinsures for the fîrst $100,000 of each occurrence.
Specific coverage includes property damage, municipal errors and omissions,
automobile, and personal injury. This coverage is limited to $15,000,000 in annual
aggregate claims per policy year.

2. Other lnsurance Policies: The City maintains insurance coverage in the following
specific areas, real and personal property damage with loss of revenue and increaseã
expenses, auto-physical damage, machinery damage and faithful performance bonds.

Worker's Compensation Insurance coverage was carried with the State Compensation
Insurance Fund for all work-related injuries through September 30, 2004. As of October 1,
2004, the City began to self-insure itself for workers compensation coverage.

SANDPIPA is governed by q Bgard of Directors consisting of one member appointed by
each member city. The Board elects a President, Vice-President, and Treasurei-and meeti
bi-monthly to supervise and conduct Authority affairs. The day-to-day business of
SANDPIPA is handled by a full-time manager employed by the Authority.

Lawsuits in the nature of claims for damages to persons and/or property have been filed
against the City._Thg Cr.tf Attorney directs and thé Risk Manager-assìsts in the disposition
of these claims. In addition, claims management is provided by Carl Vy'arren and Cómpany.
The City notifies all appropriate parties, including Carl V/anen and Company, SANDÞPÂ
and the excess insurance carriers of claims/suits that have been filed whenappropriate.

SANDPIPA monitors the progress of claims/suits that are reported. The City records a
liability_up to_ the amount of its selÊinsurance retention (See-Note 6). The City has no
knowledge of any material liabilify in excess of insurance coverage for known suits or
claims.

The following represents changes in the claims liability for the two years ended June 30,
2005 and 2004:

Unpaid claim liabilities, beginning of year
Incurred claims and claims adjustment
Net decrease in provision for insured events in prior fiscal years

Unpaid clairn liabilities, end of year

2005

s 11,494
155,319

2004

21,697
8,010

(18.213)
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10) Risk Management. (Continued)

There was no significant reduction in insurance coverage by major categories of risk frorn
fiscal year 2003-2004 to fiscal year 2004-2005. Furthermore, there was no settlement that
exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years.

(11) Other Required Disclosures

Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

The following departments reported expenditures in excess of appropriations:

Variance
Favorable

Appropriations Expenditures (Unfavorable)

General Fund Department:
General Government-Legal Services $629,600
CommunityDevelopment-Building Services 243,900

Deficit Fund Balances

The following Special Revenue funds reported a deficit

SEEG
Proposition A
CDBG
CALTRANS
TEA 21 and TEA
Miscellaneous Grant

The deficit fund balances noted
reimbursement.

690,779
299,544

(61,179)
(55,644)

fund balance at June 30, 2005:

$132,357
33,023

128,955
354,958
652,136

99,008

above are expected to be eliminated through future gtant
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(12) Operating Lease

Ou December 6,2001, the City entered into an operating lease for certain equipmeul. The
lease provides for monthly paylents of$205 for 5 years commencing on Jairuáry i, 2002.
Cunent year rental costs were $2,460.

Minimurl future rental pa)anents under the operating lease were as follows:

2006
2007

Equipment

2,460
JÆ9

$3é90

(13) Cedros Avenue Assessmeut District

During July 1989, the Cedros Avenue Assessment Distr-ict No. 1 issued hlprovement
Bonds totaling 5216,939 (less bond issuance costs of $19,807) to irnance varióus capital
improvements. The outstanding bonds at June 30,2005 were approximately $12,700. 

-

The City bas no obligation or duty to pay any delinquency out of any available funds of the
City. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to the palment
of the bonds, and therefore tlie bonded indebtedness is not shown in ihe financial statements
of the City.

(14) Reserves and Desiqnations for Fund Equily

hr tl.re Governmental Fund Types Balance Sheet, fund balances are classified in the following
categories:

Reserved for encumbrances - Arrrounts reserued for encurnbralrces are conmitments for
materials and seruices on purchase orders and coulracts which are not yet perfotmed

Resered for debt service - The arnount reseled lor debt service is for future principal and
interest palments on long-term debt.

Reserued for housing - The resene for low and moderate income housing is in accordance
with the Califo ria Health and Safety Code.

Reserved for deposits This reserve is established for deposits being held to indicate that
they are not available, spendable resources.
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(14) Reser¿es and Designations for l'und Equitv. (Continued)

Reserved for developer fees - .A'mounts reseled fol developer fees represent amounts Íìom
various developer-s which a:e restncted to specific uses related to their projects to ensure city
code complialce.

Desigrrated for spçqjfiq _ptqiçc'E_arIl plpg4¡n! - This classification was established to reflect
fiu-rds earmarked by the City Council or Cily adrninistration fol specilic projects or programs
in future years.

(15) Prior Penod Adiustments

Thc City had prior-period adjustments to the following proprietary fund, ard govelnmental and

business{ype activities:

Proprietarf¡ Fund

Net assets at June 30, 2004 as previously reported
Capìtal assets as restated (See Note 5)

Nct assets. begiuning as rcstarcd

Statement of Activities

Enterprise Fund-
Sanitation

$ 19,481,06s

Q3.s6r)

$19.457.504

$ 1 9,481,06s
(23.561)

$_19.45t9

Governr¡ental
Activities Businessllpe Activitv

Net assets at June 30, 2004 as previously repor-ted

Capitâl assets as restated (See Note 5)

Net assets, beginling as lestated

$ 52,833,619
469.866.8s2

$522.:ÌAA.ÐL
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(1) Budsets and Budgetalv Accountius

Budgels are adopted ou a basis consistent wìth accounling principles generally accepted iu
the United States of Ar¡erica and used as a nanagenent conh.ol device. Ar¡ual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the genelal, speciai revenue, debt serice and capital
project fuirds. Certain funds did not have otìginal budgets adopted, however, these funds
did have budgets adopted before fiscal year end. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
buclgeted amounts between accoufts within any deparlment ald fund. Expenditules may not
exceed approprialions at the fund level. Arrnual appropriations lapse at fiscal year etrd.
Selected appropriations are qarried over, Project-length fìnancial plâns are adoptéd for the
City capital projects.

(2) Exþenditures in Excess of Applopliglliettq

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following major fuitd deparlment:

Varialrce
Favolable

Apl¡Sp!¿l&¡1Ä ExÞendirures (Unfavorable)

General Fund Department:
General Govenrment-Le gal Services $629,600
Communily Development-Building Services $243,900

690,779
299,544

(61,179)
(ss,644)
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
General Fu¡rd

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

2005

Revenues:
Taxes and assessments:

Propetly
Sales

Franchise and other
intergovernmentai
Licenses and permits
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitu¡es
invcstlnelit income
Revenues from use of

money and propeúy
OtlTer

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General govenìmelrt:

City council
City clerk
Legal services

Manager
Finance
Personnel
Information systems

Support ser-"rices

Total genelal government

Public safety:

Junior lifeguard
Marine safety

Law enforcement
Code & parking enforcenrent
Fire
Animal regulatioti
Civil defense

Environmental sewices

Total public safety

Budget Budget Actual Positìve (Negative)
Adopted Final

$ 3,913,600 4,013,600
2,584,400 2,661,000
1,779,600 1,959,600

860,100 1,189,500
200,500 260,500
321.200 354,600
2s5,000 289,000
141,000 158,100

32,000 42,000

3,869,983
2,661,448
2,014,500
1,415,906

305,807
404,523
336,224
2t3,123

\4 qî)

184,237
236,180
690,'179

310,l l5
451 ,081
191,31.3

1.59,455
376.221

(7,098)
rq 7)1

Variance witl'l
Final Budget

2004

Acfual

30,6s3
280,304

10,490,573

(143,611) 3,763,es3
(s,ss2) 2,691,127
s4,900 1,189,582

226,406 1 ,016,450
4s,307 266,716
49,923 364,979
41,224 175,062
ss"023 111..747

396,300 376,300 416,023

10,489,700 11,310,200 1r,672,439 362,239

18,413 t77,809
12,330 228,39r

(61,179) 194,837
'ìr sRs )qq ìo5
32"929 428,584
r4,383 186,s3s
35,014 172,338
68,779 255,781

180,900
234,400
244,600
352,300
447,900
I q4 500

178,100
43 8,500

202,650
248,510
629,600

342,300
484,010
205,696
194,529
445.000

2,271,200 2,152"295 2,s99,98r 1s2,314 1,943,586

5 8.170
479,200 419,200 471 ,173

2,083,s00 2,083,500 2,081,200

r09,900 109,900

188,500 142,600

21,000 30,724

51,s30 20,800
2,027 624,655
2,300 1,945,363
45"927 147,492
80,802 2,302,87 6

4,260 s4,8s2
9,388 36,730

96,673
2,802,500 2,891,390 2,810,588

66,700 66,700 62,440
21,136

64,100 64,836 58"346 6,490 91,333

5,815,400 5,868,850 s,666,126 202.124 5,224,101
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CITY OI,'SOLANA BE,{CH
General Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

(Continued)

2005
Variance with
Final Budget

2004

Actual

731,485
127,993
387,243

1,246,72r

Public works:
Street and other
Public facility
Engineering

Total public works

Community development:
Planning
Building services

Total conrmunily
development

Community sera/ices:

Communify seruices

Recreation programs

Total community serrrices

Total expenditlres

Exccss (deficiency) of
revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Tlausfers in
Translers out

Net cliange in fuld balance

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted Final

776,200 i,131,953 983,837
121,400 144,200 138,269
3s1,s00 413,600 39s,4s1

1,249,100 I,689,1 s3 I ,s17 ,5s7

459,900 51 1,100 492,890

(1,076,200) (1,2s6,200) (1,246,722)

(849,700) (1,761,224) (384,891)

11,079,421 tl,079,421 11,019,421

Buclget Budget Actual Positive (Negatiye)

148,116
5,931

I 8,149

172.1.96

18,210 397,700
203,900 243,900 299,544 (55,644) 210,330

663,800 7s5,000 792,434 (37,434) 608,030

156,100 159,226 132,s1,7 26,709 131,778
107,600 107,600 104,188 3,412

263,700 266,826 236,705 30,121 237,370

10,263,200 11,332,724 10,812,803 51.9.921 9,259,808

226,s00 (22,524) 8s9,636 882,160 1,230,765

17,500 I I O\

(706,947)

876,333 523,818

10,555,603

Jl922e!21 _2,818f2J__!r8ét0 _________qlçI_ Jl,012t2L_

(15,30s)

9.478
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CITY OÞ- SOLANA I}EÄCH
TEA 21 and TEA Special Revenue Funds

Budgetaly Cornparison Schcdule
Year ended June 30, 2005

Revenues:

Intergovenlmental

Expenditures:
Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance. June 30

Adopled Final
Budget Budget

217,800 1,220,053

- (20,853)

(866,338) (866,338)

_qlqgç:q __$q!_2u

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

( 176,s08)

Actual

1,022,692

808,490

214,202

(866,33 8)

(6s2,136)

423,5'Ìl

4l 1 ,563 1,005,061

23s,05s (581,490)

235,0ss (866,338)
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Assets

Cash and investrnents
Receivables:

Accounts
Tax
Interest

Due from otl'rer govenìnlents

Restdcted casl'r with fìscal agent

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Äccounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Defered revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserued fol encuntbtances
Reserved for debt service
Re seled for housing
lìesewed for capital projects
Unreserved:
Designated for specific
projects and programs
reported in:

Special tevenue fuuds
Undesignated, reported in:

Special revenue funds
Capital projects fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities ar,d fund balanaces

CITV OF SOLANA BEACH
Non-Major Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

$ 312,671

2,513
152,533

650,5 65

1,118,282

1.37,971

251,715
341.698

408,021

1,985,482

2,873,118 2s1,7ls

$3,991,460 2s1,7ts

Special Debt Capital
Iìevenue Selice Projects
Funds Fund Fund

$3,896,453

5,546
3s,784
27,228
26,449

:51 ,71 5

Totals
2005 2004

s,092,7 64 s,s46,947

5,546
3s,784 35,s88
32,008 15,39i
26,449 8,6s7

251,715 251,666

:All]!s_ _¡85!¿12_

450,623 416.068
2,513 5 qqR

1s2,533 163,160

650,56s 48,117

1,2s6,234 633,403

447 ,287 3,001,020
251.,115 251,666
341,698 435,267

101,141 101,141

1,196,3 I 1

4,780

137,952

137,9s2

309,3 10

101,141

408,021 409,122

1 ,985,482 106,4'70
652,688 6s2,688 319,560

1,063,139 4,188,032 5,224,846

J_201_p2l_ Jjll¿96 rÅ:3?4e_
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Non-Maior Funds

Cornbinirrg Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Furd Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Special
Revenue

Funds

s 722,821
1,462,848

16,s 10

83,801

D ebt

Service
Fund

Capital
Project
Fund 2005

122,821.

1,462,848
1 6,510
15,115

95,700
6,005

2,318,999

2,466
247,667

640,121

3,346,374

))A ñ) \
13 9,681

2004

2,217,881
747,202

14,483
9,312

49,403

80,185

3,118,466

t,920
191,5 56

1,376,293

885,307

249,403
151,102

T'otals

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments

Intergove rmental

Charges for sewìces

Investment income

Uses ofrnoney and property

Otl.rer

Total revenues

Expenditurcs:
Current:

General governntent

Public safety

Public works

Capital ou t'lay

I)ebt service:

Principal tetirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of teveltues
over (under) expcnditures

Other financing sources:

Tralisfers iu
Transfers oLrt

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July I

Fuud balances, June 30

15,115

l 1.899

2,285,980

247,667
640,127

2,617,472

(2,Ies)

(r,221,481)

4,094,659

J_2,81]_J18

6,005

1 1,899 21,120

2,466

728,902

224,02s
139,681

366,172 728,902 4,600,340 2,8s5,581

(1,219,286) (3s4,273) (107,782) (2,281,341,) 262,88s

ÌSL 1)) 1"246,722
(2,1es)

706,947

49 184,618 (1,036,814) 969,832

2st,666 878,521 5,224,846 4,2ss,0r4

2s1,7rs 1,063,139 4,188,032 5,224,846

892,400

12



NON-M,A,JOR SPECIAL REVI',NUE FUNDS

The following Special Revenue Funds have been classìfied as non-major fuuds in the
accompanying financial statements:

Gas Tax Fund - The Gas Tax Fund is used to account for revenues received and expenditures
made for sûeet lelated activìties. Revenues are received lroll the State of Califomia for the
City's share of gasolirie taxes pursuant to Califomia Streets and Highways Code Sections 2105,
2106,2107 anrl2101 .5.

Municipal Improvement Disd - The Municipal lmprovement Districts Fund is used to
account for receipts and expenditures related to landscape maintenance within the various
improvement districts. Budgets for the maintenance costs ãre detenlined by the propeúy owners
who are then assessed on a per parcel basis. The assessments are collected via the County tax
rol1.

SEEG Fund - The SEEG Fund is used to account for tlre Stale Environment Enl.rancemerrt Grant.

Liehtipg District Fund - The Lighting District Fund accounts for revenues received and
expeuditures rnade related to street lights on city streets. The City detennines the yearly budget
and properly ownels are charged their propottionate share based on a per unit basis. The
assessments are collected via the San Diego County tax roll.

TRANSNET Fund - This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to transporlation
developmeut, transit and related studies. Funding is provided to the City as a secondary recipient
under agreements with the County of San Diego and with the San Diego Association of
Govemments (SANDAG).

Proposition A Fund * The Proposition A Fund is used to account for the San Diego County
Proposition A one lialf (1/2) cent transportation sales tax which went iúo effect on July 1, 1988.
All revenues in this fund must be expensed for transportation related purposes.

CLEEP Fund.- The CLEEP Fund accounts for allocations from the State of Califomia paid fiom
the Califomia Law Enforcement Equipment Program. The allocatiou is to be used for law
enforcement equiprnent olly.

COPS Fund - Tlte COPS Fund is used to account for federal ald state grants received for police
sel:vrces.

Iìire Mitisation Fund - The l-ire Mitígation Fund is used to account lor hre n.ritigation fees
collected during uew structural developrnent based on constmctiol type and size. The fees are
restricted to equipment purchases only.

Fund - The Transpoftation Development Act Fund is used to
account for revenues and expenditures made for tlansportation development, transit and related
studies. Funding is provided to the City as a secondary recipier.rt under agreemenls with the
County of San Diego and with the San Diego Association of Govemments.

ÇDBG ¡ln¿ .. The CDBG Fund is used to accouDt for the federal l¡lock gl ar.rt for comnunity
developrlent.
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NON.MAJOR, S PECI A L REVENUE FUN DS, (CONTINUED)

CALTRANS Fund - These monies are delived from Congestiorl Mitigation and Air Quality
fuirds. CALTRANS is responsible for distributing these fui.rds as well as Inteulodel Surface
Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) funds lrom the federal govenlelts to local agencies.

Boatins and Waterwa-.r's Fund - The Boating and Waterways Fund is used to account for grants
received fi'om the Depattment of Boatìng and Waterways. These luuds ale being used to luud the
Army Corp. ofEngineels beach replenislunent study.

Miscellaleous G¡ant Fund - Tlie Miscellaneous Grant Fund is used to account for grants
received to fund the Coastal Rail Trail.

Ilousing Fund - The Housing Fund is used to account for resources reserved to provide for low
and nroderate inconre housing.

74



(This page intentionally left blank)



CITY OF SOLANA BEÄCH
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balânce Sheet

June 30, 2005

Municipal
Gas Implovement Lighting
Tax Districts SEËG District TRANSNET

724,805 1,686,3s 1

5,611

5,249 10,023

Assets

Cash and investüìents
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
lnlerest receivable
Due fi om other
governmental agencies

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Acclued liabilitics
Deferred revenue
l)ue to other funds

Total liabilities

Total liabilities and

fund balanccs

$ 183,855 434,574

24,813 5,360

593 3,169

g 209,261 443,103 73s,66s 1,696,314

$ I ,665 33,520
171.

20,229 22,072
l,l42

132,35't

Fr¡nd balances (deficit):
Reserved for encumblances 2,815 191 693 31,345 1.2,051.

Reserved for low and moderate

income housing
Unreselved; designated

for specifìc projects and

programs 408,021

1,66s 34,291 132,357 21,911 22,012

J_4e291_ _-_1431103- _ _111É!¡_ ___1,6e!;Jt_

Unleserved; undesignated 204,181 (133,050) 682,349 1,662,251

Total fund balances (deficit) 201,596 408,812 (1,32,351) 713,694 1,614,302
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Transportation
Proposition CLEEP File l)evelopment

A Grant COPS Mitigation Act CDBG CALTRANS

t52,350 7 4,548 247 ,640
5,546

J59 569 4 ).O)

26,449

- 152,709 75,11"t 251,842 26,449 5,546

176

t51 5ìì

70,807 129,731

33,023 25,613 360,s04

33,023

ì ?65 67,792

(36,288) - 7s,1t1 113,243 (128,9ss) (3s4,9s8)

(33,023)

- 1s2,709 1s,117 251,842 26,449 5,546
(corrtinu ed)



CITY OF SOLANA BEACI-I
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
(Continued)

Assets

Cash and investments

Accounts reoeivable

Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Due fiom other
goveninental agencies

Total assets

Lial¡ilities and Fund Balances

I-iabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Defered revenue

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances (dehcit):
Reseled fol encumbrances

Resewed for low and moderate

income l.rousiug

Um'esewed; designated

for specilic plojects and

plograms
Unreserved; undesignated

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities and
fund balances

26,449 8,657

- 395,394 3 ,991 ,460 4,691 ,553

Dept. of
Boating &
Waterways

$

Miscellaneous
Grants
Iìund

Totals

3,896,453 4,640,451
5,546

35,784 3s,588

2t,228 12,857

Housing
Fund

392,330

3,064

20042005

99,008 34,471

lo ??(

34r,698

(9e,008)

(99,008) 360,923

31.2,671 385,559

2,513 5,998

rs2,533 48,1'77

650,565 163,160

1,118,282 602,894

137 ,917 2,543,200

341,698 435,261

408,021. 409,722

|,985,482 106,47 0

2,873,178 4,094,659

3,991,460 4,697 ,5s3

34,411

99,008

l8

395,394
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACII
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Combinin g Stâternent of Reveuues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Baìalces

Year ended June 30, 2005

Gas

Tax

Municipal
Improvement

Districts
384984

2,995

Lighting
District
JJ /,öJ /

ì )Rq

11 All

TRANSNET

618,454

24,051

SEEGRevenues:
Taxes and assesslnents

Intergovernmental
Charges for sei.rices

Use of money and proper'ly

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety

Public works
Capitaì outlay

Totaì expenditures

Excess (de1ìciency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures

Othel lìnancing sources:

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in lund balances

Fund balances (deficit), July I

lìund balances (dcIìcit), June 30

257.689

1.861 8.785

2s9,ss2 396,764

t 16,950

116,950 358,553 642,505

280,621

280,627

402,391 237,136
249,301 355,811 31,517

402,391 249,307 593,613 37,5'71

(21,01s) (s,627)

228,611 414,439

_!__l!1l:6 408 81r

604,928

(132,3s7) (23s,060) 604,928

948,7 s4 |,069,3"t4

(132,357) 113,694 1,674,302

(21,01s) (s,627) (t32,3s1) (23s,060)
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Ploposition CLEEP
A Grant

File
Mitigation

Transportation
Development

Act CDBG CALTRANS

140

a loo

2,010

2,0r0

)Cts 4'\)

205,432

(203,422)

110,626

16,510
1,889 1.,641

112,515 18,151

112,515 18,248

26,449 8,159

15,257

26,449

s36,947 151,199

1 12,515 18,248 536,947 151,199

156 ôqq

3s6,099

(e7) (s21,690) (12s,3s0) (347,800)

(91) (s21,690) (125,350) (347,800)(203,472)

170,399

___ß]!4Ì

75,214 702,125

15,117 181,035

(3,60s) (7,158)

_]1¿qÐÐ_ ___f1l1f:Ð
(continued)



CITY OF SOLANA BEACII
Non-Maior Special Reveuue Funds

Combining Stateme¡rt of Rcvenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

(Continued)

Revenues:
Taxes and assess ents
hìtergoveïnmental
Cliarges for seruices
Use ofmoney and properfy

Total revenues

Expendihrres:
Current:

Public safety
Public works

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deñcieucy) of
levenues over (under)
expendilures

Other financing sources:

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change ìn fiurd l¡alances

Fund balances (deficit), July I

Fund Ralances (deficit), June 30

894 3r8,237

Totals

122,821 22nßU
1 ,462,848 7 4't ,202

16,510 14,483
83,801 38,252

2.285,980 3,017,818

Dept. of
Boating &
Waterwâys

Miscellaneous
Grânts
Funrl

Housirg
Fund 20042005

3t8,237

894 9,844

9,844

1 t 6.904

116,904

(116,010)

(2,1.es)

(l r 8,205)

340,394

340.394

(22,1s7)

241,661 191,556
640,121 1,316,293

r03,413 2,617,472 516,803

103,413 3,505,266 2,084,652

(e3,s6e) (1,219,286) 933,166

(22.rs1)

* 1 18,20s (76,851)

_q____________ _____122!9Ð

(2,1es)
10,7r0

(1,221,481) 1,003,876

4,094,659 3,090,783

(93,s69)

454,492

360,923 2,813,118 4,094,659
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

20042005

Revenues:

Intergovemmental
Use ofmoney and propeúy

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Adopted
Budget

$263,600
3,000

266,600

215,000

(8,400)

228,671

8220,211

Final
Budget

248,200
3,000

2s1.200

Actual

2s7,689

tso sst

563,13s 280,627

(311,93s) (21,07s)

228,671 228,67 |

(83,264) 207,s96

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative) Actual

9,489 2s5,956
(1,137) 2,204

8,352 258,160

282,508 212,445

290,860 4s,7 rs

290,860

182,956

_228,67J_
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CITY OF SOLÄNA I]EACH
Municipal Improvernent Districts Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Revenues:

Taxes and assessïnelìts

Intergovernmeutal
Use of money and property

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cuner.tt:

Public works

Net change in fund balance

Ful d balance, July I

Fund balance, Jur.re 30

Adopted

Budget

$346,400
3,000
6,100

3 55,500

4s0,900

(95,400)

414,439

$ 3 19,039

Final
Budget Actual

346,400 384,984
3,000 2,995

8,785

3s5,500 396,164

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

3R 5R4

(s)
2,68s

41,264

Actral

368,602

3,064
4,560

376,226

467,600 402,391

(r r2,100) (s,621)

414,439 414,439

_:02;32_ _19!r-ll

65,209 404,539

106,413 (28,313)

442,152

_____l!!,473 ll!,ß2_
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
SEEG Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Revenues:

Intergovelnmental
Use of money and property

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cunent:

Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted
Budget

$

Final
Budget

250,000

2s0,000

250,000

Actual

I 16,950

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

( 133,050)

Actual

i i6,950

249,307

(132,3s7)

(133,050)

693

(132,3s7)

-!]z;lL ----o]2ês7)
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Lighting District Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year endcd June 30, 2005

2005

Revenues:
Taxes and assessnents
Intergovemmental
Use ofmoney and ploperty

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cunent:

Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net cllange in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted
Budget

$ 297,500
'ì tl"rfl

20.000

320,700

230,900

3 87,400

(66,100)

948,754

$ 882,054

Final
Budget

297 ,s00
3,200

320,700

230,900
473,101

104,001

(3 83,307)

948,7 54

Actual

337,837
ì ?,ìq

1 '7 A)'7

ì5R 55?

237,736
355,877

593,61 3

(23 s,060)

948,754

Variance witlr
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

40,337
89

(2,s73)

(6,836)
117,230

110 ìq4

148,241

37.853 33r.123

2004

Actual

314,513

11 )f R

570,640

s70,640

(239,st7)

1,188,211

__2!31t4565,447 113,694 148,247
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACI-I
TRANSNET Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Revenues:
Intergovemmental
Use ofmoney and property

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cunent:

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balalce, July I

Fund balance, June 30

1,054,700 I,191 ,479

1,054,700 1,191,479

(641,700) (5s9,979)

1,069,374

s 427,674

37 ,577 1,153,902

37,517 1,153,902

604p28 1,164,907

Vadance with
Final Budget

Ìositive
(Negative)

(46)
I 1,051

I i,005

Actuaì

200,849
10,8 80

211,729

211 ,729

857,645

1,164,907 1,069,374

Adopted
Budget

$ 400,000
13,000

413,000

Final
Budget

61 8,500
13,000

63 1,500

Actual

618,454
24,051

642,505

1,069,37 4 1,069,374

__l!!25 t_,67!;92_
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CITY OF SOLANA IIEACH
Ploposition Ä Special Revenue F'und

lludgetâry Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Adopted
Budget

$ 500,000

s00,000

900,000

(400,000)

170,399

$(229,601)

Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive

0\egative)

(eeo)

Actual

Revenues:
Inte lgovemmental
Use of money and properly

Total levenues

Expenditures:
Cu¡ren1:

Capital outlay

Net change in firnd balance

Fund balance (dcficil), July 1

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

3,000

3,000

|,125,665

(1,122,66s)

170,399

__(e2266)

2,010

2,010

205,432

(.203,422)

170,399

__Gt,02q

5?O q57

(990) 539,957

920,233 318,037

919,243 221,920

(s 1,521)

_-__I22ß Jl9;2e
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACFI
CLEEP Grant Special Revenue Fund

tsud getâry Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:

Intergovenmental
Interest income

Total tevenues

Expenditures:
Cunent:

Public safety

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted
Budget

$

Final
Budget

o

95

16,702

( r 6,607)

16,601



CITY OF'SOLANA BEACH
COPS Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Cornparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Revemres:

Intergovemmental
Use of moriey and properfy

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cuffent:

Public safety

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted Final
Budget Budget

$100,000 100,000

1,500 1,500

101,500 101,500

114,000 114,000

(12,s00) (12,s00)

Variar.rce with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

10,626
389

Actual

1,10,626
IRRq

112,51s

112,515

Actual

91,021
731

1 1,015 91,758

1,485 91,758

12,500

_q_G24E *C2t9E 12,500
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Fire Mitigâtion Fees Special Revenue Fund

Budgetâr'y Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2005

zo05 2004

Revenues:
Charges for services
Use of lnoney and propelty

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safely

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers ìn

Net change ilt fund balance

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted Final
Budget Budget

$ 12,500 12,500
800 800

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Aclual (Negative)

16,510 4,010
r,641

13,300 13,300 18,151 4,851 15,168

10,900 27,180 18,248 8,932 10,664

2,400 (13,880) (97) 13,783 4,504

2,400

7 5,2t4

s77,614

13,783

Actual

14,483
68s

70,710

7 5,2\4

.I\J1A

(13,880) (97)

75,214 15,214

6r,334 7 5,117 13,783
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Trâtlsportâtion Developmcnt Act Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30. 2005

20042005

Adopted Final
Budget Budget

$
4,000

- 4,000

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual (Negative) Achral

Revenues:
Intergovemmental
Use ofmoney and propely

Total levenues

Expenditures:
Cufient:

Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Fund balance, June 30

702,725

s702,72s

103,247

(.699,247)

702,725

___]_,473_

15,257

15,257

536,941

(521,690)

702,125

_-lqur_

11,251

| 1 ,Zs]

'103,248

'703,248

166,300 1,r17

171,551 702,131

- s94

117,5s7 102,125
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CITY OF SOLANA IìEACH
CDtsG Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

2005

Variance with
Final Budgel

Positive

OJegative)

(100,051)

2004

Actual
Revenues:

lntelgovei ìelìtal

Expenditures:
Curent:

Capital outlây

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance (defìcit), .luly 1

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Adopted
Budget

s 126,500

126,500

(3,60s)

_q_ç,69Ð

Final
Budget Actual

t26 ,s00 26 ,449

160,075 151,799

(33,57s) (125,350)

(3,605) (3,605)

__azJ-qo) _(qryIÐ

3,1i1

8,276 2,903

(91,77s) 208

(3,813)

____pluÐ _ ($qÐ
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
CALTRANS Special Rcvenue Fund

tsudgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

20042005

Revenues:

Intergovemmental
Use of Mol ey & Property

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance (deficit), July 1

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Adopted
Budget

$ 30,000

30,000

Final

Varialce with
Final Budget

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

394,100 8,1s9 (38s,941) 183,930

ìq4 lôn R tqq (38s,801) 183,930

30,000 386,000 3s6,099 29,901 185,i99

- 8,100 (347,800) (3s5,900) (1,269)

(7,r58) (7,1s8) (7,1s8)

$ (7,rs8) 942 (354,9s8) (3ss,900) (7,1s8)
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CITY OF SOLANA I}EACH
Dept. of Boating & Water\ryâys Special Revenue Fund

Bud getary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

Adopted Final
Budget Budget

Variallce with
Final Budget

Positìve
Actual (Negative)

20042005

494894400

96

Actuâl
Revenues:

Iltergovemmental
Use ofmoney and property

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Curre t:

Public salcly

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other' financing uses:

Transfers out

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Þ-und balance, June 30

117,000 116,904

(116,600) (116,010)

200,000
909400

400 894400 200,909

83,096

400 590 117,813

400

(2,s00)

(119,100)

1 18,205

(8es)

(2,1es)

(1 18,20s)

1 18,205

305

895

I 18,205

$ I 18,605 QO<

117,813

392

1 18,20s
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Miscellaneous Grants Special Revenue Fund

Bud getary Comparison Schedule

Year ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Revenues:
lntergovenrmental
Use of money and properly

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Cunent:

Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Fuld balance (deficit), June 30

Adopted
Budget

'-

(76,8s 1)

_q_gqg:u

Final
Budget

411,000

Actual

318,231

4L1,000 318,237

340,394 340,394

76,606 (22,1.s7)

(76,8si) (76,851)

___ptÐ _122,09Ð

Var iance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

(98,763)

Actual

91,500
t7

(98,763) et,st]

181,552

(e8,t63) (e0,035)

13,184

_____eu!Ð __g9ilÐ
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Housing Special Revenue Fund

Budgetâry Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30, 2005

2005 2004

Revenues:

Use of rnoney and property

Expenditures:
Cuuent:

Capital outlay

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

lìund balance, June 30

Adopted Final
Budget Budget

$ 7,000 7,000

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Actual O.Icgative) Actual

9,844 2,844 4,887

104,000 123,225 103,413

(e7,000) (1't6,22s) (93,s6e) 22,656 4,887

19,812

454,492

ql{7 ¿o,

454.492 454.492

338.267 360,923

449,60s

4s4,492
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NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

The following Debl Servìce fund has been classified as a non-najol fund in the accompanying
finar.rcial slatements:

Citv Debt Sewice Fund - The City's Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulatiotr
ofresources for the payment ofinterest and principal on the City's debt.



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Debt Service Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash and investments
with fiscal agents

Total assets

Fund balance

Fund balance:
Reserved for debt serice

Total fulrd balance

2005 2004

825r,115 zsr,666

$2sr,71s 25r,666

s251,1ls 251,666

_$?!_111s J51_ó95_



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Debt Service Fund

Budgetal'y Comparison Schedule
Year ended Juue 30, 2005

20042005

Revenues:

Use of money and ploperty

Expenditules:
Current:

General govemment

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Tolal ex¡renditures

(Deficiency) of revenues

over' (under) expenditures

Other financing sonrces:
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Adopted
Budget

$ 10,000

s,000

224,100
t39,700

3 68,800

(3 s 8,800)

363,800

5,000

2s1,666

$2s6,666

Þ-inal

Budget

10,000

5,000

224,100
139,700

3 68,800

(3 s 8,800)

363,800

5,000

__asé66_

2,466

224,025
139,681

366,172

(3s4,273)

\\L "1) )

49

251,666

_2:14s

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

1,899

, \1.4

75

2,628

/. \)1

(9,478)

(4,9sr)

_____i1¿ru

Actual

1 1,1s 1

1,920

249,403
t5t,102

402,425

(391,27 4)

391,237

(37)

251,703

_2ué!!_

Actual

i 1,899
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NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The following Capital Projects fuird has been classified as a non-rnajor fund in the accompanfng
financial statemenfs:

Citl, CIP Fund - The City Capital lmprovelrents Fund is used to account for the acqursitiori,
construction and improvement of capital facilities and infrastructure. The projects ale funded by
transfers frorn the General Fund.



CITY OF SOI,ANA BEACH
City Capital Projects Fuud

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2005

Assets

Cash and investments

Interest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities:
Accoults payable

Fund balances:

Resewed for encumbrances

Reselved for capital projects

Unreserved; undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

2005 2004

$1,196,311 906,496
a 1Qo J <7¿-

_qr.41491_
qoq oio

s t37,952 30,509

309,310 451,820
i01,141 101,141

6s2,688 319,s60

1,063,139 818,s21

$1,201,091 $909,030

104



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
City Capital Projects l-und

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year ended June 30. 2005

2005

Revenues:

Investment income
OllTer

'fotal revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay

(Deficiency) of revenues

over' (under) expenditures

Other hnancing soulces :

'lì ansfers ín

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, July I

Fund balance (defrcil), June 30

Adopted Final
Budget Budget

$ 20,000 20,000

20,000

712,400

(692,400)

712,400

20,000

878,521

$898,s21

20,000

1.,440,037

(1,420,031)

892,400

(sz7,637)

878,521

3 50,884

Actual

15,115

6,00s

21,120

728902

(107,182)

892,400

184,61 8

818,521

1,063,139

Variance witl,
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

(4,88s)
6,005

1,120

711,135

712,255

712,25s

'71) ) \\

2004

Actual

9,312
80,1 85

89,497

368,504

(27e,007)

245,000

(34,007)

912,528

__ü3é2J_
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AGENCY FUND

Cedros Avenue Assesslnent District Fund - The Cedros Avenue Assessrnent District Fund
accoults for paynents t'om plopelty ownels as well as debt service ou bonds which were issued
to pay lor the improvements within the assessment district. This is accounted for as an agency
fund because the City has no responsibility for the debt service on the bonds.



CITY OF SOLANA BEACFI
Agency Fund

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year ended June 30, 2005

Balance Balance

Cedros Avenue July 1,2004 Additions Deletions June 30,2005
Assessment District

Assets:

Cash and investmelìts
Interest receivable
Benefit fees receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Due to bondholders

$ 22,023 16,6s1 (2s,968) 12,706

64 58 (64) s8

_9__4!32_ _J!!9e p9,03Ð _____]2!_64_

s 22,089 16,643 (2s,968) 12,164
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
General Govemnierital Expenditures by Functiorr (')

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

General
Governmenl

r ltt 5?o

1,053,941

1"038,213

t,778,301

2"437,326

1,512,452

1,688,071

1,701"117

1 ,945,s06

2,s99,981

Public
Safety

3,423,2r2

3,s97,482

3,90s,318

4,068,137

4,224,073

4,609,936

5,136,548

s,267,668

5,4\5,65'/

5,9r3,793

Public
Wol'ks

1,242,182

1,234,960

1,144,372

1.,340,'792

1,698,644

r,700,920

1,19r,232

2,000,241

2,623"014

2,151,684

Commur.rity
Development

1R? 757

38s,779

432,496

sqs 561

546,481

564,946

506,128

668,161

608,030

792,434

1996

t997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

(ì) h.rcludes al1 govemmeutal furid types.

110
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Community
Sewices

151,986

I 57 6',ìq

152,813

185,408

2t4,7 t]

249,388

265,949

319,170

237,370

263,705

Tax
Increment

Distributions

72,194

69,288

r 05,968

19t,696

118,247

Capital
Outlay

862,078

s00,009

418,638

1,845,683

1,820,835

3,501,231

1,705,515

1,303,763

1,890,368

4,154,864

Debt
Seryice

TABI,E 1

Total

7,966,636

7,478,728

7,102,396

10,679,0s7

11,601,134

12,588,8s0

1 1,609,578

11,70s,395

13,120,450

16,246,167

'702,698

484,624

504,s78

669,4'77

480,81 I

449,91'7

s t 6,135

444,01s

400,505

363,706



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Genelal Govel¡nental Revenues by Source (')

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Taxes
and

Assessments Þ!9's9]9gm94gl

1,568,973
2,384,549
1,101,260
2,r15,603
3,123,584
2,205,6'71
3"020,055
2,699"782
2,187,223
3,901,446

Property
Transfer

Tax

Licenses
and

Permits

Chalges
for

Services

r996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

Fiscal
Year

5,321,870
5,s02,501
6,010,772
6,453,274
7 ,3t4,7 48

7,s78,201
7,7s5,941
8,26s,139

10,462,s43
9,268,7s2

Propeúy
Tax

725,739
169,1s0
250,1s1
320,3s8
215,296
208,409
183,706
246,346
266,716
305.807

Sales

Tax

261,648
340,081
414,766
582,48r
636,126
443,664
379,340
440,699
379,462
421.033

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
General Fund Tax Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

r996
r991
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

(t)

Source:

59,3 s 8
17 1))
98,895

1ì1 15q

rr4,619
r08,424
107,222
144,084
192,219
161,284

1,417 ,140
1,504,701
1,7 53,847
1 ,881 ,21 s

2,165,840
2,313,218
2,t85,532
2,482,421
2,691,127
2.661.448

Motor
Vehicle

Tax

526,821
s64,183
601,662

649,195
71',7 ,r95
720,145
152,600
8 16,690

630,270
1.r55.9'72

2,226,569
2,291,380
2,418,825
) \'1) 9,11

2,746,604
3,074,57 r

3,186,182
3,502,196
3,763,9s3
3.869.983

Includes all governmental fund types

City Finance Depâdmer.ìt
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TABLE 2

Fines and

Folfeitures

116,788
128922
125,771
168,282
169,368
206,470
255,534
160,512

115,062
336,224

Transient
Occupancy

Tax

240,t9s
256,57t
356,424
3 83,93 8

428,318
s98,131
s16 )7)
515,s88
561,429
783,538

Revenues Fron'l
Use of Money
and Proper1y

366,s66
412,506
6)\ )\1
697,659
735,244
934,174
512,r03
341,484
201,115
358,840

TABLE 2A

141,846
462,983
282,624
173,654
478,159
461 ) a'7

467,273
637,904
360,489
422,028

Total

1,903,430
9,461,298
8,870,603

11,1 11,311

12,673,125
12,039,846
12,5t3,952
12,791,926
r4,032,610
15,014,130

4,s30,683
4,690,151
5,229,653
s,621,138
6,172,576
6,8 14,5 5 5

6,768,408
1,460,979
7,83 8,998
8,632,22s

tlJ



CITY OF SOLANA BEACI'I
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Currert
Year

Tax Lely

2,403,492

2,476,614

3,083,478

3,204,457

3,462,536

3,7 53,666

4,002,562

4,203,031

4,454,612

4,630,963

Cunent Tax
Collections

Percent of
Current Taxes

Collected

Delinquent Delinquerrt
Tax Tax

Receivable Collections

1996

1997

1998

r999

2000

2001

2()02

2003

2004

2005

2,342,649

2,421,005

3,027,453

3,150,01 6

3,400,773

3,691,387

3,941,924

4,144,738

4,398,480

(1) 4,s84,6s3

91

98

98

98

98

98

98

99

99

99

)11 A1A

220,508

tto c)tR

180,929

r s6,003

154,680

146,108

135,270

125,819

131,t44

96,6s2

89,176

1 18,580

90,799

?5 ?OO

80,799

83,602

76,910

'77,196

49.173

Source: County ofSan Diego, Auditor and Contloller's Office and

City Finance Deparll'nent
(1) Cify Finance Depattlent Estimates ìncluding Educational

Revenue Augmentatiou Fund (ERAF) Shift



Total
Tax

Collections

Ratio of
Total Tax

Collections to
Total Tax Ler.),

91

90

16

93

90

89

97

97

98

98

Outstanding
Delinqueni

Taxes

201.,625

131,332

I 1 1,348

90,130

80,604

73,881

63,106

5 8,360

48,623

81,911

TARLE 3

Ratio of
Delinquent

Tâxes to Tolal
Tax Lery

l1

7

5

4

4

4

3

3

3

2,439,301

2,510,1 81

2,402,3s7

2,439,30r

2,510,1 81

3,146,303

3,240,815

3,416,1.12

4,41s,676

4,633,826



Fiscal
Year

CITY OF SOLANA BEÀCH
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Value (')

Real Pelsonal
Property Property Total

TABLE 4

Percent

Change From
Previous Year

1996 1,36r,474,289 24,363,061 1,38s,837,3s6

1997 1,400,974,591 23,532,264 1,424,456,8ss

i998 1,434,604,034 22,774,295 1,457,378,329

1999 1,513,691,239 24,119,436 1,537,816,6'75

2000 1,8r1,497,39s 28,960,692 1,840,458,087

2001 1,809,972,125 28,599,652 1,838,571,'7'71

2002 1,964,073,ts2 28,368,754 1,992,441,906

2003 2,086,s21"695 21,864,674 2,108,392,369

2004 2,22t,946,459 26,874,382 2,248,820,841

200s 2,419,412,69s 33,231,612 2,452,644,367

(') The County of San Diego does not compile Estimated Actual Valuations
Therefore, only the Assessed Value is presented.

1.36 %

2.79 %

2.3t %

5.s2 %

19.68 %

-.10 %

8.31 %

s.82 %

6-66 %

9.06 %

Source: San Diego County Auditor and Conlroller



Fiscal
Year

Other
District

TABLE 5

Total
School
District

0.65 16

0.6s 16

0.6525

0.6514

0.65 13

0.65 13

0.6513

0.6513

0.65 l3

0.5201

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Properly Tax Rales - Direct and Overlappitg Govellu¡ents

(Per $ 100 ofAssessed Value)
Last Ten Fiscal Yeals

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

City

0. 1608

0. 1608

0.1602

0. i602

0.1602

0.1602

0.1602

0.t602

0.1602

0. 1600

County

0.r467

0.r467

0.1464

0.1464

0.1464

0.t464

0.t464

0.1464

0.1464

0.013 1

0.0430

0.0430

0.0430

0.0440

0.0422

0.0406

0.0406

0.0392

0.0380

0.1883 (l)

1.0021

1.0021

1 .0021

1.0021

1.0020

1.0001

0.9984

0,9910

0.9958

1.0000

Source: Cor.rnty of San Diego Auditor and Controller's Office

(1) Includes Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund Levy of 0.126
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Principal Taxpayers

June 30, 2005

2005
Assessed

Valuation

TABLE 6

Percentage
of Total
Assessed
Valuation

Solana Beach Towlle Centre LLC
Pacific Solana Beach Holdings Ltd,
Sanyo Foods Corp of Anerica
Fenton Solana Highlands LLC
ERP Operating LTD Par tnership
La Vida Del Mar Associates
Urschel Laboratories Inc.
Price Enterprises
Generation Venture Fund IV LLC
Del Mar hrvestols Limited Parlnership
Solana Beach Corporate Centre LLC
Pacifica Solala LLC
Generation Properties Lirnited Partnership
Ozawa Fanns Inc.
530 Lomas Santa Fe LLC

Source: County of San Diego Auclitor and Controller

$ 27,8s9,814
26,203,348
25,61r,744
24,766,905
15,93 8,5 86

14,066,266
11,s7s,960
tt,258,866
10,645,783
9,923,769
9,040,528
7 ,7 s9,341
t 

"185,922
7,000,000
6,140,097

$ 2rs,036,93s

12.96 %
12.19
11.94
t1.52
7.41
6.54
5.3 8

5.24
4.9s
4.61
4.20
3.61

3.34
3.26
2.86

100.00 %

It8



CITYOFSOLANABEACH TABLET
Conrputatìou of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 2005

Total Valuation (i)

Debt Limit - 15 percent of total valuation

Ar¡ount of Debt Applicable to Debt Limit

Legal Debt Margin

(t) 25yo ofthe assessed valuation

$ 613,161,092

s 9r,974,164

$ 9t,974,t64

r19



2004-05AssessedValuation: $2,452,644,367

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT:

Metropolitan Water District
San Dieguito Union High School Dist. Community Facilities Dist. No.
San Dieguito Urrion High School Dist. Combined Community Facilitie
Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Assessment District No. 96-1

TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING LEASE OBLIGATION DEBT:

San Diego County General Fund Obligations
San Diego County Peusion Obligation Bonds
San Diego County Superintendent of Schools

General Fund Obligations
MiraCosta Community College District

Certifi cates of Paúicipation
Solana Beach School Distr-ìct Cerlihcates of Parlicipation
City of Solana Beach Cerlificates ABAG Revenue Lease Bonds

COMBINED TOTALDEBT

Ratios to Assessed Valuation:

Direct Debt ($2,915,000)
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessurent Debt
Cornbined Total Debt

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Cornputation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

Jule 30, 2005

TABLE 8

% Applicable Debt 6/30/05

0.185 % g ',77s,872

3.274 586,296
1.256 608,238
0.711 140,814

0.97 r
0.97 r

0.971

4.s90
26-923

100.000

s2,111,220

% 4,s04,242
12,159,219

124,s06

229,730
314,999

2,915,000

20,241,1s6

s 22,358,916 (')

TOTALDIRECT AND OVERLAPPING LEASE OBLiGATION DEBT

STATE SCHOOL BU]LDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/05

0.12
0.09
0.91

$0

Excludes tax and revenue anticipatìon notes, enterprise revenue, nroftgage revenue, tax allocation
bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligalions.

Source: Califor¡ia Municìpal Statistics, Inc.

t20



Fisca.l

Year
Median

Age

32.2

32.7

32.9

33.2

40.6

41.6

4t.7

41.6

4t.6

41.6 Q)

School
Enlollnrent

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

200t

2002

2003

2004

2005

Population

13,550

13,677

t3,94s

r4,1s2

t4,3s0

t2,979

13,280

13,329

13,392

13,400 (r)

1 ,813

1,874

1,972

1,977

1,977

2,703

2,706

2,100

2,700

2,700 Q)

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten F'iscal Years

TAltT.U 9

Unemploylenl
Rate

6.0

5.4

4.2

3.5

2.7

2.',7

2.5

2.8

2.3

23 Ø)

(') Source: Table E-l- City County Population with Alnual Percent Change

.Icutuary I , 2004 and 2005 (FY 2003-04 revised)
provided by, The State of California Deparlment ofFinance(t) Source: Census 2000 Population and Housing Charactenstics City of Solana Beach
provided by, San Diego Association of Govenurents
<http://calt.sandag.org/dddefault.asp?g=5&gs:17&grp:c20&o=d&go=Get+My+Dâta& 1=1(t) Source: Solana Beach School District General Infornnllon, (number is approxiurate)
<http ://www.sbsd.k1 2. ca.us/sbsd,/district/district.html>(o) 

SouLce: Labor Force Data for Sub-County Areas (Data not seasonally adjusted)
2002 Benchmark. Provided by, State of Califomia Employtrer.rt Development, Labor
Market Information Division
<http ://www. cahnis. cahwnet. gov/hlell finontl/SANDIStIB.'lXT>

Source: Cily FiDance Depafiment
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CITY OF SOLANA BEACI{
Propeily Value, Constructìon and Bank Deposits

Last 'f en Fiscal Years

Propelty Value (')

Fiscal
Year Commercial

Property Value
Residential Exemption

1996 205,213,918 1,192,512,501 (36,2s2,r30)

1997 218,126,120 1,219,029,552 (36,231,081)

1998 223,364,390 1,249,814,380 (38,s14,136)

1999 238,606,832 1,313,726,746 (38,636,339)

2000 275,492,318 1,570,838,213 (44,149,184)

2001 300,490,281 1,699,239,328 (44,149,184)

2002 31s,22'1,589 1,801 ,s61 ,r70 (46,96s,81s)

2003 325,382,906 r,935,s3t,904 (41,962,s00)

2004 345,739,311 2,098,945,699 (53,104,616)

200s 398,842,904 2,081 ,364,256 (33,s62,793)

(') Estillated assessed value from Table 4.
e) Bank of Amer'ìca Statements October 1994 - January 2002

Union Bank of California Statements December'2001 - June 2005
(3) 

This is a conected amount from fiscal year 2001/2002 CAFR

r,36t,47 4,289

t,400,924,591

r,434,604,034

1 ,sr3,697 ,239

r,802,181,34'7

1,955,580,425

2,015,828,944

2,212,952,310

2,39t,580,394

2,452,644,367

Source: City Building Services Department



'IABLE 10

Colnl¡er-cial Constmction Residential Construction
Nutnber Percent Nurnber Percent
of Units Value Change of Units Value Change

s4,000 461.51%

4,64s,066 8501.9'7%

1,638,000 -64.74%

s,231,310 219.37%

7,011,33t 34.03%

2,880,148 -58.91%

131,135 -95.45%

5,418,009 4031.63%

t 3,378,887 t46.93%

1.094.56r -9t.82%

237,674 -92.78%

1,451,093 510.54%

7,474,807 475.12%

9,183,261 22.86%

4,478,661 -51.23%

3,429,5s7 -23.42%

4,233,061 23.43%

3,126,884 -26.t3%

4,437,895 4L93%

10,931,054 t46.31%

Bank
Deposits(2)

19,961,724

)a l)a ¿.\7

22,181,367

20,056,38'7

24,569,555

24,630,921

23,662,403

20,508,930

25,t32,111

18,550,541

1

6

26

348

t1

t1

1

7

4

4

i3

i3

I4

11

17

41



CITY OÞ- SOLANA BEACH
Miscellaneous Statistics

June 30, 2005

Date of Incorporation
Form of Goverrulent
Number of Employees (lncluding par-ttime seasonal and excluding Fire)
Facilities and Seruices:

Miles of Streets
Nunber of Street Lights
Area in Square Miles
Culture and Recreation :

Community Cer.rters

Parks
Park Acreage
Beaches (miles)

Fire Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Fire Personnel and Officers
Number of Calls Answered
Nunber of hispections Conducted
Number of Fire Hydrants

Police Protection:
Deputy Sheriffs and Community Service
Offrcers are provided tluough a contract
with the San Diego County Slieriffs
Department. Coverage is continuous 24
hours per day and 7 days per week.

Sewer Systenr:
CitY:

Miles of Sanitary Sewers
Miles of Stonn Sewers
Nur¡ber ol Pump Stations
Nur¡ber of Service Connections (Equivalent Drvelling Units)

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority:
Number of Treatment Plants
Daily Average Treatment in Gallons
Maximun Daily Capacrty of Treatment Plalt in Gallons

Source: Corlpiled ì:y City lìinance Depaflment.

TABLE 11

July 1, 1986
Council/Manager

61

46

148
3.4

2

1

3

1.3

i
20

1,33 8

104

666

37
3

3

I,121

I
2,990,000
5,250,000
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